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Our technology leadership continues...



What does ASML stand for? 

Ever since the company was founded in 1984, the promise of

commitment has been consistent with the core values of ASML.

Our commitment is customer centric and includes technology.

Commitment to technology leadership. Delivering leading edge

technology. Packing a pipeline of advanced technology. 

Investing in R&D for next generation technology.

Our commitment is the foundation for our relationships with all 

our stakeholders:

Commitment to our customers. 2002 marks the company’s

renewed customer focus. We will make sure that our customers

feel our long-term commitment to making them successful.

Commitment to our employees. Our people, who come from over

45 nations, are commited to ASML’s success and contribute great

ideas. To support them, we create an environment for professional

development to grow their careers and do their best work.

Commitment to our suppliers. We work in partnerships with

suppliers from all over the world. We help our suppliers to suc-

ceed so they can help us succeed.

Commitment to our investors. The company’s reputation for 

transparency in its business and its track record for credibility

exemplify ASML’s commitment to investors.

Commitment
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In this report the expression ‘ASML’ is sometimes used for

convenience in contexts where reference is made to ASML

Holding N.V. and/or any of its subsidiaries in general. Those

expressions are also used where no useful purpose is served

by identifying the particular company or companies.

‘Safe Harbor’ Statement under the U.S. Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995: The matters discussed in this

document include forward-looking statements that are sub-

ject to risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to,

economic conditions, product demand and industry capacity,

competitive products and pricing, manufacturing efficiencies,

new product development, ability to enforce patents, avail-

ability of raw materials and critical manufacturing equipment,

trade environment, and other risks indicated in filings with the

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Five-Year 
Financial Summary

Year ended December 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
(in thousands, except per share data) EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data
Net sales 1,363,694 1,326,497 1,635,986 3,062,644 1,844,361

Cost of sales 856,505 892,874 1,117,434 1,842,234 1,792,504
Gross profit on sales 507,189 433,623 518,552 1,220,410 51,857

Research and development costs 189,202 223,794 264,809 392,003 424,447
Research and development credits (13,613) (29,964) (38,815) (24,983) (16,223)

Selling, general and administrative expenses 129,035 167,821 210,408 312,991 279,993
Restructuring and merger and acquisition costs 0 13,096 (468) 0 57,259

Operating income (loss) 202,565 58,876 82,618 540,399 (693,619)
Gain on sale of marketable securities 14,130 0 0 0 0

Minority interest in net result from
subsidiaries (net of tax) 0 0 0 (3,205) 3,606

Interest income (expense), net 8,355 6,631 1,009 12,593 (7,207)
Income (loss) before income taxes 225,050 65,507 83,627 549,787 (697,220)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 73,454 15,718 26,439 167,249 (218,228)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes net of tax 0 0 0 4,491 0

Net income (loss) 151,596 49,789 57,188 378,047 (478,992)

Basic net income (loss) per ordinary share1 0.33 0.11 0.12 0.82 (1.03)
Number of ordinary shares used in computing per

share amount (in thousands) 454,682 456,216 458,542 461,887 465,866

Consolidated Balance Sheets Data
Working capital 749,610 939.872 1,515,767 2,107,645 1,770,059

Total assets 1,355,774 1,557,185 2,397,926 3,432,972 3,643,840
Long-term liabilities, less current portion 8,634 281,856 821,201 868,540 1,554,544

Total shareholders’ equity 964,765 978,543 1,129,900 1,666,212 1,226,287

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data
Capital expenditures (124,157) (166,008) (138,425) (190,440) (346,735)

Depreciation and amortization 41,457 67,376 88,029 124,590 158,798
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 6,956 (34,555) 40,800 215,129 (235,552)

Net cash used in investing activities (129,467) (128,412) (162,637) (161,319) (359,973)
Net cash provided by financing activities 15,163 275,355 553,154 34,198 664,290

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (107,610) 109,124 430,511 248,812 (73,522)

Ratios and Other Data
Increase (decrease) in net sales (in percent) 23.1 (2.7) 23.3 87.2 (39.8)

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales 38.3 32.7 31.7 39.8 2.8
Operating income (loss) as a percentage of net sales 14.9 4.4 5.0 17.7 (37.6)

Net income (loss) as a percentage of net sales 11.1 3.8 3.5 12.3 (26.0)
Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of total assets 71.2 62.8 47.1 48.5 33.7

Backlog of systems (in units) at year-end 377 111 284 556 181
Sales of systems (in units) 557 449 368 783 360

Number of employees at year-end 5,408 5,024 6,061 8,123 7,070

1 All net income per ordinary share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split in May 1997 and May 1998 and the
three-for-one stock split in April 2000, as well as the issuance of shares for the merger with Silicon Valley Group Inc.



5

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001

Management

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Doug J. Dunn 

(1944)

President, Chief Executive

Officer, Chairman of the

Board of Management;

Appointed in 1999;

British nationality

Peter T.F.M. Wennink 

(1957)

Executive Vice President

Finance and Chief

Financial Officer;

Appointed in 1999;

Dutch nationality

Martin A. van den Brink

(1957)

Executive Vice President

Marketing & Technology;

Appointed in 1999;

Dutch nationality

David P. Chavoustie 

(1943)

Executive Vice President

Sales;

Appointed in 2000;

U.S. nationality

Michael J. Attardo 

(1941)

Former President and CEO

of IBM Microelectronics;

U.S. Nationality;

First appointed 2001,

current term until 2004

Syb Bergsma 

(1936)

Professor of Financial

Management at 

the University of

Amsterdam and Former

Executive Vice President

Financial Affairs of Akzo

Nobel N.V.;

Dutch nationality;

First appointed 1998,

current term until 2004

Henk Bodt 

(1938)

(Chairman)

Former Executive Vice

President of Royal Philips

Electronics N.V.;

Dutch nationality;

First appointed 1995,

current term until 2004

Jan A. Dekker 

(1939)

Chief Executive Officer of

TNO;

Dutch nationality;

First appointed 1997,

current term until 2003

Peter H. Grassmann 

(1939)

Former President and

Chief Executive Officer of

Carl Zeiss;

German nationality;

First appointed 1996,

current term until 2003

Arie Westerlaken 

(1946)

(Secretary)

General Secretary and

Chief Legal Officer of

Royal Philips Electronics; 

Member of Group

Management Committee

of Royal Philips

Electronics; 

Dutch nationality;

First appointed 1995,

current term until 2002

Stuart K. McIntosh 

(1944)

Executive Vice President

Operations and President

Lithography Division;

Appointed in 2001;

British nationality

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD



Financial Statements

Composition of the

Board of Management

Supervision

Composition of the

Supervisory Board

Report of the 
Supervisory Board 

The Supervisory Board has reviewed the financial statements and the notes thereto of ASML

Holding N.V. (the “Company”) for the financial year 2001, as prepared by the Board of

Management. Deloitte & Touche, independent auditors, have duly examined these financial

statements. Their report appears in these financial statements.

The Supervisory Board has adopted these financial statements in accordance with article 38,

paragraph 5 of the Company’s Articles of Association. The Supervisory Board recommends that

the General Meeting of Shareholders approves these financial statements in accordance with

the proposal of the Board of Management.

As announced in December 2000, Mr. N.I.M. Hermans resigned as a Board of Management

member per April 1, 2001. Per the same date, Mr. S.K. McIntosh, Executive Vice President

Operations and President Lithography Divisions, was appointed as a member of the Board of

Management. 

The Supervisory Board met five times in the course of 2001. Topics of discussion at the meet-

ings included, among other things, the Company’s general strategy, the Company’s finances, its

financial performance, the internal division of tasks of the Board of Management, strategic

alliances and acquisitions and the risks associated with the Company. The Supervisory Board

was also kept up-to-date on the course of the Company’s business through monthly reports and

was consulted on various issues on a regular basis.

In an extraordinary meeting, the Board of Management discussed with the Supervisory Board

the integration process of Silicon Valley Group, Inc. (“SVG”), the strategic cooperation with

Micronic Laser Systems A.B., as well as the business climate.

Members of the Supervisory Board also met with the Works Council in the course of the year.

In 2001 the Remuneration Committee met twice, and the Audit Committee met three times in the

presence of the external auditor.

The Supervisory Board met once without the Board of Management to discuss, among other

things, the functioning of the Supervisory Board itself; the relationship with the Board of

Management; and the performance, composition and succession of the Board of Management.

In 2001, Mr. H. Bodt and Mr. S. Bergsma were reappointed as members of the Supervisory

Board. Furthermore, Mr. M.J. Attardo was appointed as member of the Supervisory Board as of

May 21, 2001, upon the merger between the Company and SVG. Mr. Attardo brings a wealth of

experience in the semiconductor industry and particularly in SVG, and fits very well in the pro-

file that the Supervisory Board has drawn up for this position.
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Mr. A. Westerlaken will be retiring by rotation per March 21, 2002 and has informed the

Supervisory Board that he will not be available for reappointment. The Supervisory Board regrets

this decision, but is grateful to Mr. Westerlaken for his valuable contribution to the Supervisory

Board during the seven years that he was a Supervisory Board member. The Supervisory Board

intends to appoint Mr. J.W.B. Westerburgen effective March 21, 2002. Mr. Westerburgen, with

his extensive experience in the field of corporate and tax law, fits very well in the profile that the

Supervisory Board has drawn up for this position. 

Finally, the Supervisory Board wishes to thank all involved for their contribution to the Company

in 2001.

The Supervisory Board

Veldhoven, January 17, 2002
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Business Strategy 

Significant Events

Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and 

Results of Operations

ASML’s strategic objective is to realize profitable and sustainable growth by providing leading

edge manufacturing solutions to the worldwide semiconductor industry that continually improve

customers’ competitiveness by enhancing the value of their ownership of ASML equipment. 

The principal elements of ASML’s “value of ownership” strategy include:

– Maintaining significant levels of research and development spending in order to offer

customers, at the earliest possible date, the most advanced technology suitable for high-

throughput, low-cost volume production 

– Offering customers continuing improvements in productivity and value by introducing

advanced technology, based on the modular, upgradeable design of ASML’s families of tools

– Pursuing continuing reductions in the cycle time between a customer’s order of a tool and the

use of that tool in volume production at the customer site

– Providing superior customer support services that ensure rapid and efficient installation, as

well as continuing on-site support and training to optimize the manufacturing process and

improve customers productivity

– Expanding operational flexibility in research and manufacturing by reinforcing strategic

alliances with world-class partners

On May 21, 2001, ASML completed its merger with Silicon Valley Group Inc. (“SVG”). As a result

of this merger, ASML has become a multiproduct semiconductor equipment company supplying

lithography, photoresist processing (track) and thermal systems to the world’s leading semi-

conductor manufacturers.

On October 16, 2001, ASML announced accelerated integration with SVG as a consequence of

the continuing downturn in the semiconductor industry. This resulted in one-time charges

including restructuring costs of EUR 521 million. These charges include workforce reduction

related expenses, fixed assets write-off and building closure costs as well as inventory write-off

due to discontinued product lines. Furthermore, additional obsolescence costs of inventories

and merger and acquisition costs were included. Of these costs EUR 408 million is included in

cost of sales together with EUR 56 million additional cost for obsolete inventory, EUR 57 million

in merger and acquisition costs and other restructuring costs. 

On June 20, 2001, ASML announced that it had reached agreement in principle to enter into a

strategic alliance with Micronic Laser Systems AB (“Micronic”) to enhance both companies’ positions

as leading suppliers of advanced lithography equipment to the display and semiconductor industry.

Furthermore, the Company invested in a non intrest-bearing EUR 34 million convertible loan to

Micronic. The loan has a term of three years. 

9

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001



Euro

Results of Operations

On October 17, 2001, ASML issued convertible subordinated notes with a principal amount of

USD 575 million. The net proceeds were EUR 638 million.

On January 15, 2002, ASML MaskTools, Inc., and Numerical Technologies, Inc., announced they

had entered into a licensing agreement to provide semiconductor manufacturers with easier

access to subwavelength manufacturing solutions that incorporate ASML MaskTools’ patented

scattering bar technology.

On December 19, 2001, ASML announced that it completed the divestment of Tinsley

Laboratories Inc. (“Tinsley”) to another U.S. company. ASML agreed with the committee on

Foreign Investments in the United States (“CFIUS”) to make a good faith effort to sell Tinsley.

On January 1, 1999, the Netherlands and eight other member countries of the European Union

adopted the euro (“EUR”) as their new common currency. Effective January 1, 2002, the euro

became the legal tender of the Netherlands for both cash and non-cash electronic money trans-

fers between ASML and its business partners.

For external reporting purposes, effective January 1, 1999, ASML adopted the euro as its report-

ing currency. Balances for periods prior to January 1, 1999, are not comparable to the balances

of other companies that report in euros but have restated amounts from a different currency than

Dutch guilders. 

The following discussion and analysis of results of operations should be viewed in the context

of the risks affecting ASML’s business strategy, described in a separate section below. 

The merger with SVG is accounted for under the “pooling of interests” method. Therefore,

ASML’s Consolidated Financial Statements for each of the three years ended December 31,

2001 reflect the combination of financial statements for ASML’s historical operations with those

of SVG. The five-year summary presented on page 4 reflects the combined figures as well. 

In conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) reporting guidelines,

the comparative figures for the twelve months ended December 31, 2000 and December 31,

1999 reflect the combined annual results of the fiscal years of ASML and SVG. Because SVG’s

fiscal reporting period prior to the merger differed from ASML’s fiscal reporting period, compar-

ative figures contain the results of ASML's historical operations for the twelve months ended

December 31 and the results of SVG’s historical operations for the twelve months ended

September 30.
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Results of Operations

2001 compared with 2000

Restructuring

Consolidated sales

Following is ASML’s consolidated statements of operations data for the three years ended

December 31, 2001, expressed as a percentage of total net sales: 

Year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

Total net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of sales 68.3 60.1 97.2

Gross profit on sales 31.7 39.9 2.8

Gross profit excluding restructuring charges

and additional obsolescence costs* 31.7 39.9 28.1

Research and development costs 16.2 12.8 23.0

Research and development credits (2.4) (0.8) (0.9)

Selling, general and administrative expenses 12.9 10.2 15.2

Restructuring and merger and acquisition charges 0.0 0.0 3.1

Operating income (loss) 5.0 17.7 (37.6)

Operating income (loss) excluding 

restructuring charges** 5.0 17.7 (9.4)

Interest (income) expense, net (0.1) (0.3) 0.4

Income (loss) before income taxes 5.1 18.0 (37.8)

Provision for income taxes 1.6 5.7 (11.8)

Net income (loss) 3.5 12.3 (26.0)

Sales of systems (in units) 368 783 360

Although not a measure of financial performance under U.S. GAAP, we also provided extra lines marked with *  and **:
* Excluded are charges that are comprised of:

– restructuring EUR 408 million
– additional costs for obsolescence inventory EUR 56 million

** Excluded are charges as explained under the restructuring paragraph totalling EUR 521 million.

During 2001, the semiconductor industry faced its worst downturn in history. Despite some

positive signs in the industry, ASML sees no clear indication that an upturn will happen before

the second half of 2002. ASML will closely monitor developments of the semiconductor market

in general and development of its customers’ business in particular.

In October 2001, ASML implemented a restructuring plan including workforce reduction, fixed

asset write-off and building closure costs as well as inventory write-off due to discontinued

product lines. The restructuring costs amounted to EUR 411 million, of which EUR 408 million is

included in cost of sales. The number of employees actually terminated pursuant to the restruc-

turing plan as per December 31, 2001, is approximately 1,100 (including temporary workforce).

Furthermore, ASML incurred additional merger related expenses and other one-time charges of:

– Merger and acquisition expenses EUR 54 million.

– Additional reserve for obsolete inventory EUR 56 million.

– Other EUR 3 million.

Consolidated net sales were EUR 1,844 million compared to EUR 3,063 million in 2000.

Currently more than 50 percent of the top 20 IC manufacturers are ASML customers.

In 2001, sales to one customer accounted for EUR 217 million, or 11.8 percent of net sales. In
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Lithography sales and

gross profit

2000, sales to three customers accounted for EUR 483 million, EUR 457 million and EUR 442

million or 15.8, 14.9 and 14.4 percent of net sales, respectively. 

ASML recognizes the business segments, Lithography and Track & Thermal activities. The

following discussion reviews net sales and gross margin per business segment.

The following table shows a summary of sales and gross profit on a semi-annual basis:

Year ended December 31 2000 2001

First Second First Second

half half half half

year year year year

Total units shipped 207 248 120 77

Net sales (EUR million) 1,189 1,444 811 743

Gross profit on sales of 

new systems (% of sales) 41.5 43.6 30.4 (42.7)

Overall gross profit (% of sales) 39.6 42.3 28.4 (28.9)

Gross profit excluding 

restructuring and additional 

cost for obsolete 

inventories (% of sales) 39.6 42.3 35.3 24.7

Average unit sales price for 

new systems (EUR million) 5.7 5.9 5.9 8.1

Net sales in the Lithography segment consist of revenue from sales of wafer steppers and Step

& Scan systems, sales of equipment and options, which may occur in conjunction with the initial

sale of a system or after its installation, and revenue from service.

Total net sales for Lithography decreased from EUR 2,633 million in 2000 to EUR 1,554 million in 2001,

a decrease of EUR 1,079 million or 41.0 percent. The decrease in sales was caused by a decrease in

shipments from 455 units in 2000 to 197 units in 2001. This decrease was partly offset by an increase

(17.9 percent) in the average unit sales price for new systems. The 56.7 percent decrease in the num-

ber of systems shipped is a result of the worst year-on-year decline in sales in the history of the semi-

conductor industry. The 17.9 percent increase in the average unit sales price of new systems reflects

the introduction and shipment of ASML’s most advanced technology products in 2001. These prod-

ucts include the leading edge, high numerical aperture lens products for the 248 nanometer and 193

nanometer technology node, as well as those for 300 millimeter TWINSCANTM systems. 

The decrease in total net sales in 2001 included an increase in net service sales of 28.8 percent

from EUR 170 million in 2000 to EUR 219 million in 2001, reflecting the continued increase in the

size of the installed base of ASML’s lithography tools at customer production facilities.

Total net sales for 2000 and 2001 include EUR 67 and EUR 19 million, respectively, relating to

the sale of 53 and 17 pre-owned systems. These systems were reacquired from existing cus-

tomers and then resold, primarily to other customers utilizing these systems in areas requiring
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Track and Thermal sales

and gross profit

the less critical resolution capabilities provided by these machines. ASML will engage in similar

repurchase and resale transactions in the future; however, it does not anticipate that the impact

of those transactions will be significant.

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales decreased from 41.1 percent in 2000 to 1.0 percent in

2001. Excluding the gross profit service sales, gross profit on system sales including field

upgrades decreased from 41.2 percent to (1.0) percent. The gross profit was negatively affected

by the costs associated with the restructuring plan, under-utilization of production facilities and

pressure on discount levels. Excluding the restructuring costs for inventory write-offs, costs for

factory closure and severance payments, the overall lithography gross profit in 2001 was 30.2

percent, compared to 41.1 percent in 2000. 

The gross profit on service sales decreased to 13.0 percent in 2001 from 14.4 percent in 2000,

due to provisions for excess and obsolete spare parts. 

The following table shows a summary of sales and gross profit on a semi-annual basis: 

Year ended December 31 2000 2001

First Second First Second

half half half half

year year year year

Total units shipped 115 213 130 33

Net sales (EUR million) 175 255 205 85

Gross profit (% of sales) 31.0 33.2 25.2 (17.6)

Gross profit excluding 

restructuring charges 

(% of sales) 31.0 33.2 25.2 (3.1)

Average unit sales price 

for new systems (EUR million) 0.9 0.9 1.2 1.4

Net sales in the Track and Thermal segment consist of revenue from sales of photoresist pro-

cessing systems (track) and thermal systems and options which may be sold in conjunction with

the initial sale of a system or after its installation and revenue from service.

Total net sales for track and thermal systems decreased from EUR 430 million in 2000 to

EUR 290 million in 2001, a decrease of EUR 140 million or 32.6 percent. The decrease in sales

was caused by a decrease in shipments from 328 units in 2000 to 163 units in 2001. This

decrease was partly offset by an increase in the average unit sales price for new systems.

The 50.3 percent decrease in the number of systems shipped reflects the worst overall decline

in sales in the semiconductor industry. Sales in this segment primarily depend on systems for

adding manufacturing capacity. In view of the downturn, the demand for such capacity tools fell

sharply. The 35.4 percent increase in the average unit sales price of new systems reflects

increased demand in 2001 for new technology including 200 millimeter and 300 millimeter ther-
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Research and

development costs 

Selling, general and

administrative costs

mal bridge-tools. The service sales decreased from EUR 118 million in 2000 to EUR 87 million

in 2001, a decrease of EUR 31 million or 26.3 percent, largely due to lower demand for con-

sumables and other products relating to the utilization of track and thermal equipment installed

in customer production facilities.

Overall gross profit as a percentage of total net sales decreased from 32.3 percent in 2000 to

12.7 percent in 2001. Excluding the gross profit on service sales, gross profit on system sales

decreased from 23.9 percent to a loss of 7.0 percent. Severe under-utilization of production

capacity, the costs associated with the introduction of new technology and the costs for restruc-

turing of production facilities have caused this major decrease in gross profit. Excluding the

restructuring costs, total gross profit as a percentage of total sales for the Track and Thermal

segment in 2001 was 16.9 percent compared to 32.3 percent in 2000.

The gross profit for service sales improved to 58.8 percent in 2001 from 54.5 percent in 2000,

mainly as a result of rationalization and cost control measures. 

The nature of research and development costs and selling, general and administrative costs

does not differ significantly between business segments. These items will be discussed on a

consolidated basis.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs increased from EUR 392 million (12.8 percent of total net

sales) in 2000 to EUR 424 million (23.0 percent of total net sales) in 2001. The increase in

research and development costs reflects ASML’s continuing effort to introduce several leading

edge lithography products for 248 nanometer and 193 nanometer applications and the newest

versions of the TWINSCAN™ platform, combined with continued investments in next generation

157 nanometer lithography solutions and Extreme UV (EUV). Furthermore, ASML increased its

research and development activities relating to 300 millimeter ProCell™ track systems and the

leading edge APNext™ and Xcelerate™ thermal systems.

ASML foresees further long-term growth in research and development, staffing and other costs.

However, for 2002, ASML expects a decrease of research and development expenditure due to

more cost efficient programs as a result of the restructuring.

Research and development credits

Research and development credits decreased from EUR 25 million in 2000 to EUR 16 million in

2001. The decrease in research and development credits in 2001 in comparison to 2000 is a

direct result of decreased research and development efforts qualifying for credits.

Management anticipates receiving research and development credits in 2002, approximately

equal to the amounts received in 2001, although the precise amount remains subject to further

negotiation with the relevant granting authorities.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by 10.5 percent from EUR 313 million in

2000 to EUR 280 million in 2001 as a result of accelerated cost reduction measures in both seg

ments, including workforce reduction activities. Because net sales decreased by 39.8 percent,
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Income taxes

Results of operations

2000 compared with 1999

Lithography sales and

gross profit

selling, general and administrative expenses increased as a percentage of net sales from 10.2

percent in 2000 to 15.2 percent in 2001.

Income taxes represented 30.2 and 31.3 percent of income before taxes in 2000 and 2001

respectively. This increase results from a change in distribution of pre-tax income between

geographical areas.

Consolidated net sales were EUR 3,063 million in 2000 compared to EUR 1,636 million in 1999.

In 2000, sales to three customers accounted for EUR 483 million, EUR 457 million and EUR 442

million or 15.8, 14.9 and 14.4 percent of net sales, respectively. In 1999, sales to three cus-

tomers accounted for EUR 244 million, EUR 242 million and EUR 165 million or 14.9, 14.8 and

10.1 percent of net sales respectively.

The following table shows a summary of sales and gross profit on a semi-annual basis: 

Year ended December 31 1999 2000

First Second First Second

half half half half

year year year year

Total units shipped 93 174 207 248

Net sales (EUR million) 494 995 1,189 1,444

Gross profit on sales 

of new systems (% of sales) 29.1 34.4 41.5 43.6

Overall gross profit (% of sales) 28.3 33.9 39.6 42.3

Average unit sales price 

for new systems (EUR million) 5.0 5.7 5.7 5.9

Total net sales increased from EUR 1,489 million in 1999 to EUR 2,633 million in 2000, an increase

of EUR 1,144 million or 76.8 percent. The increase in sales was caused by an increase in shipments

of both lithography divisions from 267 units in 1999 to 455 units in 2000, as well as an increase in

the average unit sales price for new systems. The 70 percent increase in the number of systems

shipped reflects the strong customer demand in 2000 in the semiconductor industry and the equip-

ment industry in particular, as well as ASML’s strong position in the fastest growing markets. ASML

expanded its sales to the Asian market including its first ever shipment to the important Japanese

market. ASML’s sales to fast growing markets like Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia increased sig-

nificantly. The 5 percent increase in the average unit sales price of new systems was due to a fur-

ther shift in customer demand towards ASML’s most advanced technology products. In 2000, ASML

successfully launched its first 300 millimeter TWINSCANTM product. ASML’s balanced product offer-

ing in i-line and DeepUV Step & Scan systems as well as the introduction of the 300 millimeter

TWINSCANTM in 2000 also accounted for important new customer wins.

The increase in total net sales in 2000 included an increase in net service sales of 54.5 percent

from EUR 110 million in 1999 to EUR 170 million in 2000, reflecting the continued increase in the

installed base of ASML’s products at customer manufacturing facilities.
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Track and Thermal net

sales and 

gross profit

Total net sales for 1999 and 2000 include EUR 42 million and EUR 67 million, respectively,

relating to the sale of 25 and 53 pre-owned systems. These systems were reacquired from

existing customers and then resold.

Gross profit as a percentage of total net sales increased from 32.1 percent in 1999 to 41.1

percent in 2000. Excluding the gross profit on service sales, gross profit on system sales

increased by 9.7 percent to 41.2 percent in 2000. Cost control measures, learning curve benefits

at ASML’s production sites and in its supply chain, and the improved utilization rates that

accompanied ASML’s higher sales volumes, significantly improved gross profit throughout 

the year. In 1999, especially the first half of the year, gross profit was negatively affected by

significantly higher costs for production and the introduction of newly developed products.

Furthermore, the under-utilization of ASML’s manufacturing capacity during the first half of 1999

affected gross profit adversely. 

The following table shows a summary of sales and gross profit on a semi-annual basis:

Year ended December 31 1999 2000

First Second First Second

half half half half

year year year year

Total units shipped 32 69 115 213

Net sales (EUR million) 50 97 175 255

Gross profit (% of sales) 20.3 32.1 31.0 33.2

Average unit sales price for 

new systems (EUR million) 0.7 1.0 0.9 0.9

Net sales increased from EUR 147 million in 1999 to EUR 430 million in 2000, an increase of EUR

283 million or 192.5 percent. The increase in sales was caused by an increase in shipments from

101 units in 1999 to 328 units in 2000, as well as an increase in the average unit sales price.

The 225 percent increase in the number of systems shipped reflected the strong customer

demand in the year 2000 for track and thermal systems. Thermal systems in particular account-

ed for a strong increase in net sales including thermal products resulting from the July 1999

acquisition of the Semiconductor Equipment Group of Watkins-Johnson Company (“SEG”).

The increase of net sales occurred across most geographies. 

The average selling price of units shipped increased by 1.6 percent. This 1.6 percent consists of a

decrease in the average unit selling price, due to a relatively stronger growth of the number of ther-

mal systems shipped, more than fully offsetting the exchange rate of euro versus the U.S. dollar.

The increase in total net sales in 2000 included an increase in net service sales of 129.4 percent,

reflecting the continued increase in the installed base of ASML's products at customer manu-

facturing facilities as well as the increase in sales due to the July 1999 acquisition of SEG.

Gross profit as a percentage of total net sales increased from 28.1 percent in 1999 to 32.3
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Research and

development costs 

Selling, general and

administrative expenses

Income taxes

percent in 2000. Excluding gross profit on service sales, gross profit on system sales increased

from 18.8 percent in 1999 to 23.9 percent in 2000, due to increased sales volumes and there-

fore better utilization of manufacturing capacity.

Gross profit on service sales increased from 45.4 percent in 1999 to 54.5 percent in 2000. 

The portion of service revenues derived from the sale of higher margin yielding spare parts grew

relative to overall service sales.

The nature of research and development costs, and selling, general and administrative costs

does not differ significantly between business segments and will be discussed on a consolidat-

ed basis.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs increased from EUR 265 million (16.2 percent of total net

sales) in 1999 to EUR 392 million (12.8 percent of total net sales) in 2000. The increase in

research and development costs resulted from an increase in staffing levels from 1,714 at the

end of 1999 to 2,214 at the end of 2000. The increase in research and development costs

reflects ASML’s continuing efforts to develop its 300 millimeter TWINSCAN™ platform and to

expand its PAS 5500 family of Step & Scan systems, its high throughput cross-performance

Micrascan platform and its 300 millimeter ProCell™ track system. The increase also relates to

its research into next-generation lithography, 157 nanometer and Extreme UV (EUV).

Furthermore, research and development expenses increased due to increased spending on the

leading edge APNext™  and Xcelerate™ thermal systems.

Research and development credits

Research and development credits decreased from EUR 39 million in 1999 to EUR 25 million in

2000, almost entirely attributable to a re-alignment of subsidy priorities within the European

technology subsidy agencies.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from EUR 210 million in 1999 to EUR 313

million in 2000. Both segments have contributed to this increase. However, as a percentage of

net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased from 12.8 percent in 1999 to

10.2 percent in 2000. To cope with its growth, ASML increased its number of employees from

6,061 at year end 1999 to 8,123 at year end 2000. To support this strong growth, costs for infor-

mation technology, facilities, recruiting and general support functions, such as financial servic-

es, increased. Customer service costs increased primarily due to training and build up of sup-

port not directly related to service sales. This increase also reflects ASML’s efforts to support its

customers when introducing the more complex Step & Scan and 300 millimeter TWINSCANTM

and ProCell™ systems.

Income taxes represented 31.6 and 30.2 percent of income before taxes in 1999 and 2000,

respectively. In 1999 and 2000, ASML recorded tax rate benefits resulting from a program

operated by the government of the Netherlands pursuant to which eligible companies may seek 

a reduction in their effective tax rate. The implementation of this program reduced the effective 

tax rate by approximately 2.0 percent in 1999, and by approximately 0.7 percent in 2000
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Foreign Exchange

Management

Financial Condition,

Liquidity and Capital

Resources

ASML recorded additional non-recurring permanent differences in the calculation of income tax

for the year 2000, which accounted for an additional 1.2 percent reduction in the effective tax

rate. The decrease in 2000 results from a change in distribution of pre-tax income between geo-

graphical areas. 

Foreign currency translations exposure regarding U.S. dollar denominated equity investments

are hedged by U.S. dollar denominated convertible subordinated notes. Certain transactions

and assets and liabilities are exposed to foreign currency risk. The Company monitors its foreign

currency exposures periodically to maximize the overall effectiveness of its foreign currency

hedge positions. Principal currencies hedged include the U.S. dollar and the British pound.

Forwards and options used to hedge a portion of forecasted international sales and purchases

for up to one year in the future are designated as cash flow hedging instruments. Forwards and

options used to hedge the impact of the variability in exchange rates on accounts receivable and

accounts payable denominated in certain foreign currencies are designated as fair value hedges.

ASML also uses forwards to hedge its loan to Micronic which is denominated in Swedish kroner. 

On December 31, 2001, ASML was a party in open forward contracts to hedge sales

transactions in U.S. dollars up to an amount of USD 37 million. Furthermore, ASML was a party

in an open forward contract to hedge purchase transactions up to an amount of USD 15 million.

The Company estimates that on December 31, 2001, a 10 percent strengthening in the value of

the euro relative to the U.S. dollar would have increased the fair value of the existing forward

contracts by EUR 2 million as compared to EUR 5 million increase in the fair value of existing

forward contracts on December 31, 2000. 

The Company estimates that on December 31, 2001, a 10 percent strengthening in the value of

the euro relative to the Swedish kroner would have increased the fair value of the existing for-

ward contracts by EUR 2 million.

On December 31, 2001, ASML was a party in option contracts to hedge purchase transactions

up to an amount of USD 36 million.

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition should also be viewed in the context

of the risks affecting ASML’s business strategy, described in a seperate section below.

ASML’s balance of cash and cash equivalents amounted to EUR 984 million and EUR 911 mil-

lion at December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Net cash flows used by operating activities

were EUR 236 million in 2001. Net cash flows provided by operating activities were EUR 215 mil-

lion in 2000.

The cash management arrangement with Morgan Stanley & Company International, that was

consolidated during fiscal 2000, was dissolved during 2001. ASML’s share in the investments of

the fund were sold and transferred as cash to ASML.

Negative cash used in operating activities during 2001 was due to the company’s net operating

losses. ASML's results from operations were negatively affected by a restructuring charge and
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other one-time charges of EUR 521 million. The net operating loss included a cash charge due

to the restructuring of approximately EUR 57 million, (including merger and acquisition costs of

EUR 54 million). The expected cash impact in 2002 from the 2001 restructuring charge is

estimated to amount to EUR 74 million.

The decrease in accounts receivable of EUR 356 million reflects the decline in the number of

shipments during 2001 as well as more effective collection procedures. However ASML’s ratio

of average accounts receivable to total net sales was 24.9 and 40.6 percent in 2000 and 2001,

respectively due to the sharp decline in sales and a significant amount of new technology ship-

ments in the fourth quarter of 2001.

ASML generally ships its systems on payment terms requiring 90 to 100 percent of the sales

price to be paid within 30 days after shipment. The remainder of the purchase price for ASML’s

systems is due within 90 days after shipment or within 30 days after completion of the

installation process and subsequent customer testing.

The gross inventory level increased by 42.3 percent as a consequence of the sudden downturn.

The Company has increased the provision for obsolete inventory from EUR 177 million in 2000

to EUR 561 million in 2001, mainly due to discontinued product lines and far lower than

expected demand. The ratio of average inventory to total net sales increased from 22.7 percent

in 2000 to 46.7 percent in 2001.

In 2000 and 2001 ASML paid EUR 147 million and EUR 74 million in taxes, respectively. As of

December 31, 2001, ASML had current tax assets of EUR 50 million. This primarily consists of

U.S. tax assets.

Net cash used in investing activities was EUR 161 million and EUR 360 million in 2000 and 2001,

respectively. 

The 2000 and 2001 amounts primarily reflect the further expansion of production facilities as

well as significant investments in ASML’s own equipment (including prototypes, training and

demonstration systems), largely to support sales, production, training and demonstration

capabilities that relate to new 300 millimeter product lines. Furthermore, in June 2001, the

Company invested in a convertible loan to Micronic. ASML expects capital expenditure in 2002

will decrease significantly.

Net cash provided by financing activities amounted to EUR 34 million and EUR 664 million in

2000 and 2001, respectively. The 2001 amount primarily reflects the net proceeds from the

offering of convertible subordinated Notes in October 2001 of EUR 638 million. Furthermore, the

Company received EUR 26 million proceeds from the exercise of stock options and conversion

of convertible notes.

On December 31, 2001, the Company had available credit lines of EUR 288 million, all of which

expire in 2005. No amounts were outstanding under these facilities at the end of 2001. 

Management believes that its operating cash flows and working capital, together with existing
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Risks affecting

ASML’S Business

Strategy

cash balances and the availability of existing credit facilities, will be sufficient to finance its

scheduled capital expenditures for 2002 and to fund its working capital for next year. Also see

Risks affecting ASML’s business strategy.

In conducting its business, ASML faces many risks that may interfere with its business. Some of

those are risks that relate to the operational processes of ASML; others are inherent in ASML’s

business environment. It is important to understand the nature of these risks and the impact they

may have on ASML’s business and results of operations. Some of the most significant risks are

described below. A complete discussion of the risks ASML faces can be derived from ASML’s

annual reports filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Cyclical Nature of the Semiconductor Industry

Historically, the semiconductor industry has been highly cyclical and has experienced recurring

periods of oversupply, resulting in significantly reduced demand for capital equipment, including

ASML’s products. ASML believes that demand for any particular future period is therefore

difficult to predict.

Downturns in the semiconductor industry, and related fluctuations in the demand for capital

equipment, could materially adversely affect ASML’s business and operating results. Despite

this cyclicality, ASML must maintain a significant level of research and development spending in

order to maintain its competitive position. Management does not intend to reduce this level of

spending in response to the short to medium term cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry.

ASML expects that the semiconductor industry will experience future downturns. ASML cannot

predict the timing, duration or severity of any future downturn or the corresponding adverse

effect on its business, financial condition or results from operations.

Sole or Limited Sources of Supply

ASML relies on outside vendors to manufacture the components and subassemblies used in its

systems. Generally, these components and subassemblies are obtained from a single supplier

or a limited number of suppliers. In particular, the number of systems ASML has been able to

produce occasionally has been limited by the production capacity of Carl Zeiss SMT AG

(“Zeiss”). Zeiss is ASML’s sole supplier of lenses and other critical components and is capable

of producing these lenses only in limited numbers. ASML believes there are no alternative

suppliers for these components in the short to medium term. If Zeiss were to terminate its

relationship with ASML or if Zeiss were unable to maintain production of lenses over a prolonged

period, ASML’s sales and related operating results would be negatively affected.

Technological Change; Importance of Timely New Product Introduction

The semiconductor manufacturing industry is subject to rapid technological change, frequent

new product introductions and enhancements. The success of ASML in developing new and

enhanced systems and in enhancing its existing products depends upon a variety of factors,

including the successful integration of SVG, the successful management of the combined

companies’ research and development programs and timely completion of product development

and design relative to its competitors. ASML’s ability to remain competitive will depend in part
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upon its ability to develop this new and enhanced equipment and to introduce these systems at

competitive prices on a timely basis that will enable customers to integrate these systems into

the planning and design of their new fabrication facilities.

ASML’s development and initial production and installation of its systems and enhancements

thereof generally are accompanied by design and production delays and related costs of a

nature typically associated with the introduction and full-scale production of very complex

capital equipment. While ASML expects and plans for a corresponding learning curve effect in

its product development cycle, the time and expense required to overcome these initial

problems cannot be predicted with precision.

Competition

The semiconductor equipment industry is intensively competitive. The principal elements of

competition in ASML’s markets are the technical performance characteristics of a semiconduc-

tor system and the value of ownership of that system based on its purchase price, maintenance

costs, productivity and customer service and support. ASML’s competitiveness will depend

upon its ability to develop new and enhanced semiconductor equipment that is competitively

priced and introduced on a timely basis.

The cost to develop new systems, in particular photolithography systems, is extremely high. The

photolithography equipment industry is characterized by the dominance of a few suppliers.

ASML’s primary competitors are Nikon Corporation (“Nikon”) and Canon Kabushika Kaisha

(“Canon”). Nikon and Canon are the dominant suppliers in the Japanese market, which accounts

for a significant proportion of worldwide semiconductor production and historically has been dif-

ficult for non-Japanese companies to penetrate. ASML recently succeeded in entering this

important market. Nikon and Canon each have substantial financial resources and have stated

that they will introduce new products with improved price and performance characteristics that

will compete directly with ASML’s products, which could cause a decline in ASML’s sales or loss

of market acceptance for its photolithography systems. In addition, adverse market conditions,

industry overcapacity or a decrease in the value of the Japanese yen in relation to the euro or

the U.S. dollar could lead to intensified price-based competition in those markets that account

for the majority of ASML’s sales, resulting in lower prices and margins and a negative impact on

its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Intellectual Property Matters

ASML relies on patents, copyrights, trade secrets and other measures to protect its proprietary

technology. However, there is no assurance that such measures will be adequate. Competitors

may be able to develop similar technology independently. ASML’s pending patent applications

may not be issued, and intellectual property laws may not sufficiently support ASML’s

proprietary rights. In addition, litigation may be necessary in order to enforce ASML’s intellectual

property rights, to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others or to

defend against claims of infringement. Any such litigation may result in substantial costs and

diversion of resources, and, if decided unfavorably to ASML, could have a material adverse

effect on ASML’s business or results of operations. ASML also may incur substantial acquisition

or settlement costs where doing so would strengthen or expand its intellectual property rights
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or limit its exposure to intellectual property claims of third parties. The SVG merger strengthened

ASML’s rights.

ASML also continues to rely on a number of patents owned by Royal Philips Electronics N.V.

(“Philips”). While Philips has granted the Company, without charge, a worldwide, irrevocable,

non-exclusive license under those patents, they remain subject to the various factors regarding

validity, scope and enforceability relating to ASML’s other proprietary rights. In addition, Philips

has no obligation to defend or enforce those patents against third parties, and ASML does not

have an independent right to enforce those patents against third parties. Thus, there can be no

assurance that the Company will be able to remedy any infringement or fully take advantage of

the benefit of exclusivity in these areas.

On occasion, certain ASML customers have received notices of infringement from third parties,

alleging the ASML equipment used by such customers in the manufacture of semiconductor

products and/or the methods relating to use of the ASML equipment infringes one or more

patents issued to such parties. ASML has been advised that, if claims were successful, ASML

could be required to indemnify such customers for some or all of any losses incurred or

damages assessed against them as a result of that infringement.

On December 21, 2001, Nikon Corporation filed a complaint with the United States International

Trade Commission (“ITC”) under Section 337 of the United States trade laws against ASML. On

the same day, Nikon also filed a separate patent infringement action in the United States District

Court for the Northern District of California. On January 23, 2002, the ITC instituted an

investigation under Section 337 based on Nikon’s complaint. The Complaint in the ITC

investigation alleges that ASML’s photolithography machines imported into the United States

infringe seven United States patents held by Nikon. The complaint of the action in the California

action alleges infringement of four other Nikon patents. Nikon’s patents relate to several differ-

ent aspects of photolithography equipment. In the ITC proceeding, Nikon seeks to exclude the

importation of infringing products. The California complaint seeks injunctive relief and damages.

ASML is reviewing these cases. It is very early in the process and therefore the outcome can not

be estimated in this stage.

Dependence on a limited number of Manufacturing Facilities

Prior to the merger with SVG, the manufacturing activities performed by ASML took place in

three separate clean room facilities located in Veldhoven, the Netherlands. Although the merger

with SVG has added additional manufactering facilites, a major catastrophe such as a natural

disaster could result in significant interruption of ASML’s business operations and affect the

Company’s result of operations and financial position.

Exchange Rates

ASML adopted the euro as its functional currency for reporting in its consolidated financial state-

ments effective beginning in fiscal 1999. Since the merger with SVG, a substantial portion of the

Company’s assets, liabilities and operating results are denominated in dollars, ASML is exposed

to fluctations in the value of the dollar against the euro. The foreign currency translation expo-

sure of the net investment in SVG is hedged by the U.S. dollar denominated convertible loan.

Our financial and risk management policy is to match the currency distribution of our borrowings
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Critical accounting

policies

New Accounting

Pronouncements

to the denomination of our assets. As a result, fluctuations in our balance sheet ratios resulting

from changes in exchange rates are generally limited. Forecasted transactions that are exposed

to foreign currency risk are monitored periodically and hedged where necessary (see also

Foreign Exchange Management). 

Our management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are

based on our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with

U.S. GAAP. We have identified the policies below as critical to our business operations and the

understanding of our results of operations.

Accounting for pooling of interests

As reported, ASML merged with SVG. The merger with SVG is accounted for under the “pooling

of interests” method. In conformity with U.S. GAAP reporting guidelines, the comparitive figures

for the twelve months ended December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999 reflect the combined

annual results of the fiscal years of both. Because SVG’s fiscal reporting period prior to the

merger differed from that of ASML, the comparitive figures for 2000 and prior years incorporate

the results of heritage ASML for the twelve months ended December 31, and the results of

heritage SVG for the twelve months period ended September 30.

Recognition of revenues, income and expenses

Under the guidance set forth in SAB 101, ASML’s practice is to recognize revenues based upon

shipment.

ASML defers the fair value of the installation service yet to be performed on delivered

equipment. Furthermore, revenues of initial shipments of new technology systems are deferred

until customer acceptance.

Revenues from services are recognized when performed. Revenue from prepaid service

contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Advance payments received from

customers are deferred and recognized upon product shipment.

Income tax

The asset and liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method,

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

and for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement

carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income

in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The

effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the results

of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. If it is more likely than not that car-

rying amounts of deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance will be recorded

to reduce the carrying amounts of such assets.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

no. 133 (as amended by SFAS 137 and SFAS 138), Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative

23

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001



instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for

hedging activities. All derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are

required to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a

fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and the hedged item are

recognized in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair

value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive income and are recognized in the

income statement when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective parts of changes in the fair

value of cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings.

Implementation of this standard as of January 1, 2001, has increased net assets and other

comprehensive income by EUR 0.5 million.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141”), which is effective for all

business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 141 eliminates the pooling-of-

interests method of accounting for business combinations except for qualifying business

combinations initiated prior to July 1, 2001. In addition, SFAS 141 further clarifies the criteria to

recognize intangible assets separately from goodwill. ASML does not expect a material impact

on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows as a result of adopting

SFAS 141. The merger with SVG was completed in May, 2001.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), which

establishes new rules on the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS

142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives will no longer be amortized; however,

they will be subject to annual impairment tests as prescribed by the Statement. Intangible assets

with definite lives will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives. The

amortization provisions of SFAS 142 apply immediately to goodwill and intangible assets

acquired after June 30, 2001. With respect to goodwill and intangible assets acquired prior to

July 1, 2001, companies are required to adopt SFAS 142 in their fiscal year beginning after

December 15, 2001. SFAS 142 will be effective for ASML beginning in its fiscal year 2002. At

that time, ASML will perform the required impairment tests on those intangibles deemed to have

indefinite lives. ASML estimates that the impact of these impairment tests will be minor to its

consolidated financial position or result of operations. The goodwill as of December 31, 2001

amounted to EUR 2.1 million compared to EUR 2.3 million at December 31, 2000.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”),

which is effective for years beginning after June 15, 2002, which will be the Company's fiscal

year 2003. SFAS 143 addresses legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-

lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of a

long-lived asset. The standard requires the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement

obligation to be recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair

value can be made. Any associated asset retirement costs are to be capitalized as part of the

carrying amount of the long-lived asset and expensed over the life of the asset. The Company

has not yet determined the effect of SFAS 143 on its earnings and financial position.
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In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived

Assets” (“SFAS 144”), which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or

disposal of long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of

Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and

reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations,” for a dis-

posal of a segment of a business. SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15, 2001, with earlier application encouraged. ASML will adopt SFAS 144 as of

January 1, 2002 and does not expect the adoption of the Statement will have a significant

impact on its financial position and results of operations. 

Doug J. Dunn

CEO and Chairman of the Board of Management

ASML Holding N.V.

Veldhoven, January 17, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS1

For the year ended December 31 1999 20001 2001 20012

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) EUR EUR EUR USD

Net product sales 1,474,557 2,775,024 1,538,758 1,356,092

Net service sales 161,429 287,620 305,603 269,325

Total net sales 1,635,986 3,062,644 1,844,361 1,625,417

Cost of product sales 998,684 1,643,120 1,504,186 1,325,624

Cost of service sales 118,750 199,114 288,318 254,092

2, 17 Total cost of sales 1,117,434 1,842,234 1,792,504 1,579,716

Gross profit on sales 518,552 1,220,410 51,857 45,701

Research and development costs 264,809 392,003 424,447 374,061

18 Research and development credits (38,815) (24,983) (16,223) (14,297)

Selling, general and administrative expenses 210,408 312,991 279,993 246,755

3 Merger and acquisition costs 0 0 54,177 47,746

2 Restructuring charges (468) 0 3,082 2,716

Operating income (loss) 82,618 540,399 (693,619) (611,280)

Interest income 16,846 61,869 41,786 36,826

Interest expense (15,837) (49,276) (48,993) (43,177)

Minority interest in net results from subsidiaries, net of tax 0 (3,205) 3,606 3,179

Income (loss) before income taxes 83,627 549,787 (697,220) (614,452)

19 Provision (benefits) for income taxes 26,439 167,249 (218,228) (192,322)

Net income (loss) before effect of accounting changes 57,188 382,538 (478,992) (422,130)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle net of tax3 0 4,491 0 0

Net income (loss) 57,188 378,047 (478,992) (422,130)

Basic net income per ordinary share 0.12 0.82 (1.03) (0.91)

Diluted net income per ordinary share 0.12 0.78 (1.03) (0.91)

Number of ordinary shares used in computing

per share amounts (in thousands)

Basic4 458,542 461,887 465,866

Diluted4 462,682 483,127 465,866

1 See footnote 2 to the consolidated financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements.
2 Solely for the convenience of the reader, certain euro amounts presented as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, have been translated into

U.S. dollars using the exchange rate on December 31, 2001, of USD 1.00 = Eur 1.1347
3 The cumulative effect for change in accounting principles reflects the adjustment for SAB 101 revenue recognition.
4 All net income per Ordinary Share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the three-for-one stock split in April 2000 as well as the issuance

of shares to merge with SVG.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME1

For the year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001 2001

(Amounts in thousands) EUR EUR EUR USD

Net income (loss) 57,188 378,047 (478,992) (422,130)

Foreign currency translation 44,128 118,782 26,744 23,569

Comprehensive income (loss) 101,316 496,829 (452,248) (398,561)

1 See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS1

As of December 31 2000 2001 2001

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) EUR EUR USD

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 863,081 910,678 802,572

5 Restricted cash 121,119 0 0

6 Accounts receivable, net 926,525 570,118 502,439

7 Inventories, net 827,568 868,888 765,742

19 Current tax assets 3,330 50,107 44,159

19 Deferred tax assets 41,210 362 319

8 Other current assets 98,711 198,613 175,036

Total current assets 2,881,544 2,598,766 2,290,267

19 Deferred tax assets 3,173 262,091 230,978

Other assets 30,051 91,260 80,427

9 Intangible assets 20,187 18,376 16,195

10 Property, plant and equipment, net 498,017 673,347 593,414

Total assets 3,432,972 3,643,840 3,211,281

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Accounts payable 257,307 290,264 255,807

11 Accrued liabilities and other 458,244 537,778 473,938

19 Current tax liability 48,766 0 0

19 Deferred tax liability 9,582 665 586

Total current liabilities 773,899 828,707 730,331

Deferred tax liability 3,202 34,302 30,230

Other deferred liabilities 11,767 19,111 16,842

12 Convertible subordinated debt 828,730 1,510,902 1,331,543

12 Other long term debt 28,043 24,531 21,619

Total liabilities 1,645,641 2,417,553 2,130,565

Minority interest 121,119 0 0

Cumulative Preference Shares, EUR 0.02 nominal value; 

900,000,000 shares authorized; 

none outstanding as of December 31, 2001 0 0 0

Priority Shares, EUR 0.02 nominal value; 

23,100 shares authorized,

December 31, 2000 and 2001 issued and outstanding at 1 1 1

Ordinary Shares, EUR 0.02 nominal value; 900,000,000 shares

authorized; 463,395,369 shares issued and outstanding as of

December 31, 2000 and 466,978,391 as of December 31, 2001 9,268 9,339 8,230

Share premium 551.343 579,564 510,764

Retained earnings 944,609 484,149 426,676

Accumulated other comprehensive income 160,991 153,234 135,045

23 Total shareholders’ equity 1,666,212 1,226,287 1,080,716

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 3,432,972 3,643,840 3,211,281

1 See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY1

As of December 31 1999 2000 2001 2001

(Amounts in thousands, except share data) EUR EUR EUR USD

Priority Shares

Balance, end of year 1 1 1 1

Ordinary Shares

Balance, beginning of year 8,995 9,069 9,268 8,168

Adjustment for pooling of interests fourth quarter 2000 SVG 0 0 7 6

Balance, beginning of year, as restated 8,995 9,069 9,275 8,174

Issuance of ordinary shares 74 199 64 56

Balance, end of year 9,069 9,268 9,339 8,230

Share Premium

Balance, beginning of year 462,089 512,060 551,343 485,893

Adjustment for pooling of interests fourth quarter 2000 SVG 0 0 6,636 5,848

Balance, beginning of year, as restated 462,089 512,060 557,979 491,741

Issuance of ordinary shares 49,971 39,283 21,585 19,023

Balance, end of year 512,060 551,343 579,564 510,764

Retained Earnings

Balance, beginning of year 509,377 566,562 944,609 832,475

Adjustment for pooling of interests fourth quarter 2000 SVG 0 0 18,532 16,332

Balance, beginning of year, as restated 509,377 566,562 963,141 848,807

Net income 57,185 378,047 (478,992) (422,131)

Balance, end of year 566,562 944,609 484,149 426,676

Comprehensive Income

Cumulative Translation Adjustments

Balance, beginning of year (1,919) 42,209 160,991 141,880

Adjustment for pooling of interests fourth quarter 2000 SVG 0 0 (34,501) (30,405)

Balance, beginning of year, as restated (1,919) 42,209 126,490 111,475

Exchange rate adjustments for pooling of interests 44,069 114,128 54,450 47,986

Exchange rate changes for the year 59 4,654 (27,706) (24,416)

Balance, end of year 42,209 160,991 153,234 (135,045)

Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding (in thousands)

Number of ordinary shares beginning of year 456,699 460,412 463,395

Adjustment for pooling of interests fourth quarter 2000 SVG 0 0 365

Issuance of ordinary shares 3,713 2,983 3,218

Number of ordinary shares outstanding, end of year 460,412 463,395 466,978

1 See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS1

For the year ended December 31 1999 20001 2001 2001

(Amounts in thousands) EUR EUR EUR USD

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income (loss) 57,188 378,047 (478,992) (422,130)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows

from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 88,029 124,590 158,798 139,947

Allowance for doubtful debts (2,325) 835 3,310 2,917

Allowance for obsolete inventory 17,531 10,215 374,140 329,726

Changes in assets and liabilities that provided (used) cash:

Accounts receivable (273,395) (297,946) 390,761 344,374

Deferred income taxes (6,765) (9,647) (195,887) (172,633)

Inventories, gross 20,069 (231,905) (376,702) (331,984)

Other assets 23,265 (63,283) (108,872) (95,948)

Accrued liabilities 24,063 193,217 64,387 56,744

Accounts payable 85,906 79,938 25,745 22,688

Income tax payable 7,234 31,068 (92,240) (81,290)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 40,800 215,129 (235,552) (207,589)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (138,425) (190,440) (346,735) (305,574)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,889 3,030 21,672 19,099

Investments in financial fixed assets 0 0 (34,404) (30,320)

Purchases of short-term investments, available for sales (50,703) (18,744) 0 0

Maturities of short-term investments, available for sales 36,635 44,835 0 0

Purchase of intangible assets (21,020) 0 (506) (446)

Other investing activities 7,987 0 0 0

Net cash used in investing activities (162,637) (161,319) (359,973) (317,241)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinated Notes 516,765 0 652,176 574,756

Payment of underwriting commission (12,860) 0 (14,237) (12,546)

Net proceeds from issuance of shares,

stock options and conversion 50,045 35,948 26,351 23,222

Other financing activities (796) (1,750) 0 0

Net cash provided by financing activities 553,154 34,198 664,290 585,432

Net cash flows 431,317 88,008 68,765 60,602

Minority interest 0 121,119 (121,119) (106,741)

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash (806) 39,685 17,604 15,514

Net cash used by SVG for the quarter 

ended December 31, 20002 0 0 (38,772) (34,169)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 430,511 248,812 (73,522) (64,794)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 304,877 735,388 984,200 867,366

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 735,388 984,200 910,678 802,572

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid for:

Interest 8,021 18,427 33,444 29,474

Taxes 11,940 146,520 73,922 65,147

1 See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
2 The decrease in net cash cash used by SVG for the quarter ended December 31, 2000 consists of EUR (24,975) used for operating activities, EUR (18,132)

used for investing activities and EUR 4,335 provided by financing activities.
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Basis of 

presentation

Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of

ASML Holding N.V. Veldhoven, the Netherlands (the “Company”), and its consolidated

subsidiaries. ASML, operating under a single management, is a worldwide business engaged in

the development, production, marketing, sale and servicing of advanced semiconductor equip-

ment systems, consisting of lithography systems and track and thermal systems. ASML’s prin-

cipal operations are in the Netherlands, the United States of America and Asia. On December

31, 2001 and 2000, Royal Philips Electronics (“Philips”) owned less than 10 percent of the

Company’s shares. In addition, one of the five members of the Company’s Supervisory Board is

a Philips employee. 

ASML follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S.

GAAP”). Effective as of the beginning of fiscal year 1999, ASML changed its reporting currency

from Dutch guilders to euros. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are stated

in thousands of euros (“EUR”) except that, solely for the convenience of the reader, certain euro

amounts presented as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001 have been translated into

United States dollars (“USD”) using the exchange rate in effect on December 31, 2001 of

USD 1.00 = EUR 1.1347. These translations should not be construed as representations that the

euro amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that rate.

On May 21, 2001, ASML merged with SVG. The merger with SVG is accounted for under the

“pooling of interests” method. For accounting and financial reporting purposes, the companies

will be treated as if they had always been combined. Therefore the Consolidated Financial

Statements for each of the three years ended December 31, 2001 and the five year financial

summary on page 4 reflect the combination of financial statements for ASML’s historical opera-

tions with those of SVG for all periods presented. In conformity with U.S. GAAP reporting guide-

lines, the comparative figures for the twelve months ended December 31, 2000 and December

31, 1999 reflect the combined annual results of the fiscal years of both. Because SVG’s fiscal

reporting period prior to the merger differed from ASML’s fiscal reporting period, comparative

figures contain the results of ASML’s historical operations for the twelve months ended

December 31, and the results of SVG’s historical operations for the twelve months ended

September 30.

As a consequence, net sales and net income for the quarter ended December 31, 2000, of USD

247 million and USD 17 million respectively, were excluded.
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Principles of

consolidation

Foreign currency

Cash and cash

equivalents

Inventories

Intangible assets

Goodwill

The consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of ASML Holding N.V. and all of its

majority-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany profits, transactions and balances have been

eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign currency translation

The financial information for subsidiaries outside the Netherlands is measured using local

currencies as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities are translated into euros at the

exchange rate in effect on the respective balance sheet dates. Income and expenses are trans-

lated into euros based on the average rate of exchange for the corresponding period. Exchange

rate differences resulting from the translation of the net investment in subsidiaries outside the

Netherlands into euros are accounted for directly into shareholders’ equity. Exchange rate

differences on translations of other transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in

compliance with the rules of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 133.

Foreign currency management

Certain forecasted transactions and assets and liabilities are exposed to foreign currency risk.

The Company monitors its foreign currency exposures periodically to maximize the overall

effectiveness of its foreign currency hedge positions. Principal currencies hedged include the

U.S. dollar and British pound. Forwards and options used to hedge a portion of forecasted inter-

national sales and purchases for up to one year in the future are designated as cash flow 

hedging instruments. Forwards and options used to hedge the impact of the variability in

exchange rates on accounts receivable and accounts payable denominated in certain foreign

currencies are designated as fair value hedges. Furthermore, the Company uses forwards to

hedge the loan to Micronic, denominated in Swedish Kroner. The currency exposure relating to

the U.S. dollar denominated 520 million 4.25 percent convertible notes is naturally hedged by

U.S. dollar denominated non-current assets. The U.S. dollar denominated current assets are

partly naturally hedged by the USD 575 million 5.75 percent convertible notes.

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid investments, such as bank deposits

and commercial paper and with insignificant interest rate risk and original maturities of three

months or less at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value. Cost

includes net prices paid for materials purchased, charges for freight and customs duties,

production labor cost and factory overhead. Allowances are made for slow moving, obsolete or

unsaleable stock.

Intangible assets include intellectual property rights that are valued at cost and are amortized

straight-line over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

The Company amortizes goodwill on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of twenty-five

years. If an evaluation is required, the estimated future undiscounted cash flow associated with

the underlying business operation are compared to the carrying amounts of goodwill to 

determine if a write down is required. If such an assessment indicates that the undiscounted

cash flows will not be recovered, the carrying amount is reduced to the estimated fair value.
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Property, plant and

equipment

Evaluation of 

Long-Lived Assets 

for Impairment

Recognition of

revenues, income 

and expenses

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

amortization. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated

useful lives of the related assets. In the case of leasehold improvements, the estimated useful

lives of the related assets do not exceed the remaining term of the corresponding lease. The

following table presents the assigned economic lives of ASML’s property, plant and equipment:

Category Assigned economic life

Buildings and constructions 5 – 40 years

Machinery and equipment 2 – 5 years

Office furniture/equipment 3 – 5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 – 10 years

ASML also leases certain buildings, machinery and equipment under arrangements accounted

for as operational leases.

Certain internal and external costs associated with the purchase and/or development of

internally used software are capitalized in accordance with Statement of Position No. 98-1,

“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” These

costs are amortized straight-line over periods of related benefit ranging primarily from two to five

years and are included in machinery and equipment.

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets, including intellectual property, for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets

may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a

comparison of the carrying amount of any asset to future net cash flows expected to be

generated by the asset. If those assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be

recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the

fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount

or fair value less the cost to sell. Impairment charges recognized in 2001 totaled approximately

44 million, 32 million of which is included in the restructuring provision (see Note 2 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements) and 12 million resulting from the impairment of buildings not

used and designated for sale. There were no impairment charges in 2000 or 1999.

Under the guidance set forth in SAB 101, ASML’s practice is to recognize revenues based upon

shipment.

ASML defers the fair value of the installation service yet to be performed on delivered 

equipment. Furthermore, revenues of initial shipments of new technology systems are deferred

until customer acceptance. 

Revenues from services are recognized when performed. Revenue from prepaid service

contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Advance payments received from

customers are deferred and recognized upon product shipment. Operating expenses and other

income and expense items are recognized in the income statement as incurred or earned. No

significant returns have occurred during the past three years.
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Cost of sales

Research and

development costs

Research and

development credits

Stock options

Net income (loss) per

ordinary share

Cost of sales consists of direct product costs such as materials, labor, cost of warranty, 

depreciation and related overhead costs. Repayments of certain technical development credits

are also charged to cost of sales (see “research and development credits”, below). ASML

accrues installation and warranty expenses for every system shipped. The amount accrued is

based on actual historical expenses incurred and on estimated probable future expenses 

related to current sales. Warranty costs are charged against this reserve. Costs associated with

service revenue are expensed as incurred.

Costs relating to research and development are charged to operating income as incurred.

Subsidies and other governmental credits for research and development costs relating to

approved projects are recorded as research and development credits in the period when the

research and development cost to which such subsidy or credit relates occurs. Technical

development credits (Technische Ontwikkelingskredieten or “TOKs”) received from the Dutch

government to offset the cost of certain research and development projects are contingently

repayable as a percentage of the sales price to the extent future sales of equipment developed

in such projects. Such repayments are charged to cost of sales at the time such sales are

recorded (see Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). No such repayments are

required if such sales do not occur. TOKs claimed for the production of prototypes are used to

reduce the capitalized cost of such prototypes. The remaining capital cost of such prototypes is

then depreciated on a straight-line basis. Prototypes are not intended for sale or for use in

ASML’s manufacturing process. If such a sale or use occurs, however, ASML is obligated to

repay the related TOKs, and such repayment amount is accrued in an amount based on the net

book value of the prototype sold or used.

ASML applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock

Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for its stock option plans.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based

Compensations” (“SFAS 123”) allows companies to elect to account for stock options under the

new accounting standard, or continue to account for stock option plans using the intrinsic

method under APB 25, and provide pro forma disclosure of net income and earnings per share

as if SFAS 123 were applied. ASML has chosen to continue to account for its stock options

under the provisions of APB 25 and disclose the pro forma effects of SFAS 123 in the Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted

average ordinary shares outstanding. Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution

that could occur if options issued under ASML’s stock compensation plan were exercised, and

if ASML’s convertible loans were converted. There is no difference between diluted earnings and

the basic computation for the year 2001 because such conversions and stock compensation

plan would have an antidilutive effect.
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Use of estimates

Comprehensive
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Segment disclosure

Income taxes

Recent accounting

pronouncements

A summary of the weighted average number of shares and ordinary equivalent shares is as

follows: 

Year ended December 31

(Amounts in thousands) 1999 2000 2001

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 458,542 461,887 465,866

Weighted average ordinary equivalent shares 4,140 21,240 0

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 462,682 483,127 465,866

Excluded from the diluted weighted average share outstanding calculation are cumulative

preference shares contingently issuable to the preference share foundation as they represent a

different class of stock than the ordinary shares. See further discussion in Note 13 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

The preparation of ASML’s Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP

necessarily requires Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities on the 

balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reported 

periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

ASML has applied the requirements of SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” in its

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statements of

Shareholders’ Equity.

As ASML operates in two major segments, and in three general geographic locations, ASML

defines its operational segment by geographical location and segments and has combined the

two smaller segments Track and Thermal (see Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

The asset and liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method,

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

and for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement

carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income

in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The

effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the results

of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. If it is more likely than not that the

carrying amount of deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance will be

recorded.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 133 (as amended by SFAS 137 and SFAS 138), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), which establishes accounting and reporting standards for

derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and

for hedging activities. All derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are

required to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a

37

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001



fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and the hedged item are

recognized in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair

value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive income and are recognized in the

income statement when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the

fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings.

Implementation of SFAS 133 as of January 1, 2001, has increased net assets and other 

comprehensive income by an amount of approximately EUR 0.5 million.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141”), which is effective for all

business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 141 eliminates the pooling of

interests method of accounting for business combinations except for qualifying business 

combinations initiated prior to July 1, 2001. In addition, SFAS 141 further clarifies the criteria to

recognize intangible assets separately from goodwill. ASML does not expect a material impact

on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows as a result of adopting

SFAS 141. Prior poolings, as the pooling transaction with SVG, are not affected by Statement 141. 

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), which

establishes new rules on the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS

142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives will no longer be amortized; however,

they will be subject to annual impairment tests as prescribed by SFAS 142. Intangible assets

with definite lives will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives. The 

amortization provisions of SFAS 142 apply immediately to goodwill and intangible assets

acquired after June 30, 2001. With respect to goodwill and intangible assets acquired prior to

July 1, 2001, companies are required to adopt SFAS 142 in their fiscal year beginning after

December 15, 2001. SFAS 142 will be effective for ASML beginning in its fiscal year 2002. At

that time, ASML will perform the required impairment tests on those intangibles deemed to have

indefinite lives. Given the current valuation of the related assets, ASML expects that the impact

of these impairment tests on its consolidated financial position or result of operations will be

minor. The goodwill as of December 31, 2001, amounted to EUR 2.1 million compared to EUR

2.3 million at December 31, 2000.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”),

which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002, which will be the Company's

fiscal year 2003. SFAS 143 addresses legal obligations associated with the retirement of 

tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development or normal

operation of a long-lived asset. The standard requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset

retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate

of fair value can be made. Any associated asset retirement costs are to be capitalized as part of

the carrying amount of the long-lived asset and expensed over the life of the asset. The

Company has not yet determined what the effect of SFAS 143 will be on the earnings and 

financial position.
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In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived

Assets” (“SFAS 144”), which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the Impairment or

Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment

of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and

reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations, for a 

disposal of a segment of a business.” SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15, 2001, with earlier application encouraged. ASML will adopt SFAS 144 as of

January 1, 2002, and does not expect the adoption of the Statement will have a significant

impact on its financial position and results of operations.

2. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

On May 21, 2001, ASML completed its merger with SVG. As a result of this merger, ASML has

become a multi-product semiconductor equipment company supplying lithography, photoresist

processing (track) and thermal systems to the world’s leading semiconductor manufacturers.

On October 16, 2001, as a consequence of the ongoing downturn in the semiconductor 

industry, ASML announced cost reductions and a restructuring plan which will result in the 

consolidation of manufacturing facilities and discontinuance of product lines related to SVG. The

restructuring costs totaled approximately EUR 411 million, of which approximately EUR 408 mil-

lion are classified in the income statement as cost of sales.

EITF 94-3 “Liability recognition for certain employee termination benefits and other costs to exit

an activity (including certain costs incurred in a restructuring)” addresses when a liability for

costs associated with an exit plan or restructuring activity should be recognized. Expenses

totaling approximately 78 million, consisting of building closure costs, severance payments and

non-cancelable purchase commitments were recognized in accordance with EITF 94-3. As per

October 16, 2001, the company announced a global work force reduction by approximately

1,400 positions (17 percent) which will result in a total work force of 6,600 by the end of the first

half of 2002. The reduction will mainly affect employees involved in manufacturing facilities. The

actual amount of involuntary termination benefits paid and charged against the liability as of

December 31, 2001, is approximately EUR 3 million and the number of employees actually 

terminated pursuant to the exit plan as of December 31, 2001 amounts to approximately 1,100.

ARB 43 “Restatement and Revision of Accounting Research Bulletins” chapter 4 addresses the

valuation of inventory when the market value has decreased. Resulting from the plan of

restructuring, the Company has stopped developing and/or selling Micrascan product line

excluding Micrascan VII. The related inventory has no estimated residual value and therefore has

been written off. The expense recognized in accordance with ARB 43 totaled approximately

EUR 300 million.
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SFAS no. 121 “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets

to Be Disposed Of” addresses the valuation of property when evidence of impairment is present.

Resulting from the plan of restructuring, the Company has evaluated certain fixed assets for

impairment, and the resulting impairment expense under SFAS 121 totaled approximately EUR

33 million.

Cost of Sales Selling, general Total

and administrative

expenses

Inventory write-off 300,443 0 300,443

Purchase Commitments 51,761 0 51,761

Fixed assets write-off 32,242 462 32,704

Building closure costs 6,053 865 6,918

Severance payments 16,972 1,755 18,727

Total restructuring charges 407,471 3,082 410,553

The restructuring provision as of December 31, 2001, is as follows:

Inventory Purchase Fixed Asset Building Severance Total

write-off commitments write-off closure costs payments

Restructure provision 300,443 51,761 32,704 6,918 18,727 410,553

Incurred to date (300,443) 0 (32,704) 0 (2,979) (336,126)

Balance at December 31, 2001 0 51,761 0 6,918 15,748 74,427

The Company expects to pay the full accrual balance in fiscal 2002. Substantially all employee

terminations will be effective before or at June 30, 2002.

On October 17, 2001, ASML launched an offering of convertible subordinated notes with an

aggregate principal amount of USD 575 million.

On December 19, 2001, ASML announced that it completed the divestment of Tinsley

Laboratories Inc. (“Tinsley”) to another U.S. company. ASML agreed with the Committee on

Foreign Investments in the United States (“CFIUS”) to make a good faith effort to sell Tinsley.

On June 20, 2001, ASML announced that it had reached agreement in principle to enter into a

strategic alliance with Micronic to enhance the companies’ positions as leading suppliers of

advanced lithography equipment to the display and semiconductor industry. Furthermore, the

Company invested in a noninterest-bearing EUR 34 million convertible loan to Micronic. The

loan has a three year term.

3. MERGER AND ACQUISITION COSTS

The merger and acquisition (M&A) costs include the M&A costs of the regions USA and Europe

(total amount EUR 54 million), relating to the merger of ASML with SVG.
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4. DERIVATIVES

Hedges of Forecasted Transactions Denominated in Foreign Currencies

The Company uses forward and option foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain operational

cash flow exposures resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. These have a

duration of up to twelve months. Such exposures result from portions of the Company's

forecasted revenues and purchases denominated in currencies other than the euro, primarily the

U.S. dollar and British pound. The Company enters into these foreign exchange contracts to

hedge forecasted sales and purchases in the normal course of business, and accordingly, they

are not speculative in nature.

The Company records changes in the fair value of the derivative instruments designated as cash

flow hedges of forecasted non-euro revenue and purchases in accumulated other comprehen-

sive income (loss), until the forecasted transaction occurs. When the forecasted transaction

occurs, the related gain or loss on the cash flow hedge will be reclassified to cost of sales. In

the event the underlying forecasted transaction does not occur, or it becomes probable that it

will not occur, the gain or loss on the related cash flow hedge will be reclassified from

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to cost of sales on the consolidated statement

of income as incurred. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2001, EUR 3 million of

net gain was recognized in cost of sales relating to hedges of forecasted transactions that did

not occur. 

The critical terms of the hedging instruments are the same as the underlying forecasted 

transactions. Accordingly, all changes in fair value of these derivative instruments (including the

time value portion of purchased options) are recorded through other comprehensive income. The

changes in fair value of the derivatives are intended to offset changes in the expected cash flows

from the forecasted transactions. The Company records any ineffective portion of the hedging

instruments in cost of sales on the consolidated statement of income. Ineffectiveness of hedging

instruments had no impact on earnings in 2001.

As of December 31, 2001, EUR 0.7 million of other comprehensive income represents the total

anticipated loss to be reclassified to cost of sales, and EUR 0.6 million is the total anticipated

gain to be reclassified to cost of sales over the next twelve months as the forecasted revenue

and purchase transactions occur. 

Hedges of Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilities

Furthermore, the Company continues to hedge its net recognized foreign currency assets and

liabilities with forward and option foreign exchange contracts to reduce the risk that earnings

and cash flows will be adversely affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. These

derivative instruments hedge assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies

and are market-to-market through other income. These derivative instruments do not subject the

Company to material balance sheet risk due to exchange rate movements because gains and

losses on these derivatives offset gains and losses on the assets and liabilities being hedged.

On December 31, 2001, forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding had maturities of six

months or less. 
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For instruments designated as fair value hedges, hedge ineffectiveness, determined in 

accordance with SFAS 133, had no impact on earnings for the twelve months ended December

31, 2001.

5. RESTRICTED CASH

During 2000, ASML entered into a cash management arrangement with Morgan Stanley &

Company International Ltd. This arrangement has been terminated in 2001. As a consequence,

there was no outstanding balance at year-end.

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For the year ended December 31 2000 2001

Gross accounts receivable 932,156 579,059

Allowance for doubtful debts (5,631) (8,941)

Net accounts receivable 926,525 570,118

A summary of activity in the allowance for doubtful debt:

For the year ended December 31 2000 2001

Balance at beginning of year (835) (5,631)

Addition (4,796) (3,310)

Balance at end of year (5,631) (8,941)

7. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

For the year ended December 31 2000 2001

Raw materials 410,225 643,640

Work-in-process 383,903 493,371

Finished products 210,364 292,605

Allowance for obsolescence (176,924) (560,728)

Total inventories, net 827,568 868,888

A summary of activity in the allowance for obsolescense is as follows:

For the year ended December 31 2000 2001

Balance at beginning of year 191,746 176,924

Adjustment for pooling of interests 0 9,664

Balance at beginning of year as restated 191,746 186,588

Addition 22,881 409,621

Inventory written off (37,703) (35,481)

Balance at end of year 176,924 560,728

42

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001



8 OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following:

For the year ended December 31 2000 2001

Loan to Zeiss 19,167 95,925

Other 79,544 102,688

Total other assets 98,711 198,613

The noninterest-bearing loan to Zeiss is repaid by future shipments of lenses.

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In July 1999, ASML obtained, through its purchase of the business of MaskTools, the intellectu-

al property rights relating to Optical Proximity Correction technology. This technology enhances

leading edge lithography systems to accurately and reliably print line widths below 0.2 micron.

These rights have been valued at cost and are amortized straight-line over the estimated useful

life of 10 years. The following table shows intellectual property and other minor intangibles

including goodwill of EUR 2 million.

2000 2001

Cost

Balance, January 1 25,404 25,404

Effect of exchange rates 0 10

Additions 0 506

Balance, December 31 25,404 25,920

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance, January 1 2,851 5,217

Adjustment for pooling of interests 0 55

Balance, January 1 as restated 2,851 5,272

Amortization 2,366 2,272

Balance, December 31 5,217 7,544

Net Book Value

December 31 20,187 18,376
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant, and equipment consist of the following:

Buildings & Machinery Leasehold Office Total

constructions and improve- furniture

equipment ments and fixtures

Cost

Balance, January 1 161,536 478,172 115,918 165,271 920,897

Adjustment for pooling of interests (7,182) 2,621 (1,306) (8,260) (14,127)

Balance, January 1, as restated 154,354 480,793 114,612 157,011 906,770

Additions 50,855 253,617 20.455 21,808 346,735

Reclassifications 1,603 0 (1,603) 0 0

Disposals (278) (51,393) (2,083) (5,044) (58,798)

Effect of exchange rates 6,560 21,029 2,280 3,793 33,661

Balance, December 31, 2001 213,094 704,046 133,661 177,567 1,228,368

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance, January 1 33,753 244,764 49,056 95,307 422,880

Adjustment for pooling of interests 843 (1,796) (937) (3,754) (5,644)

Balance, January 1 as restated 34,596 242,968 48,119 91,553 417,236

Depreciation 11,297 83,763 13,150 32,319 140,529

Reclassifications 53 0 (53) 0 0

Impairment 12,200 0 0 0 12,200

Disposals (278) (30,297) (2,083) (4,469) (37,127)

Effect of exchange rates 2,885 14,404 1,956 2,938 22,183

Balance, December 31, 2001 60,753 310,838 61,089 122,341 555,021

Net Book Value

December 31, 2000 127,783 233,408 66,862 69,964 498,017

December 31, 2001 152,341 393,208 72,572 55,226 673,347
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11. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER

Accrued liabilities and other consist of the following:

For the year ended December 31 2000 2001

Deferred revenue 92,665 69,392

Warranty and installation 112,692 92,056

Materials and costs to be paid 88,572 73,756

Advances from customers 54,650 77,545

Personnel related items 80,123 67,751

Restructuring charges 0 74,427

Other 29,542 82,851

Total accrued liabilities and other 458,244 537,778

12. LONG-TERM DEBT AND BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS

ASML currently holds three convertible debts amounting to:

For the year ended December 31 2000 2001

2.5 percent convertible 268,796 268,519

4.25 percent convertible 559,934 589,931

5.75 percent convertible 0 652,452

Total convertible debts 828,730 1,510,902

In April 1998, ASML completed an offering of EUR 272 million principal amount of its 2.5 percent

Convertible Subordinated Bonds due 2005, with interest payable annually commencing April 9,

1999. Unless previously redeemed or repurchased by ASML, the bonds are convertible into

13,987,080 ordinary shares at EUR 19.47 per share at any time prior to maturity. At any time on

or after April 9, 2001, the bonds are redeemable at the option of ASML, in whole or in part, at

100 percent of the principal amount, together with accrued interest. During 2001, bonds were

converted into 14,266 ordinary shares. The bonds will mature on April 9, 2005, and be payable

at a price of 100 percent of the principal amount thereof.

In November 1999, ASML completed an offering of USD 520 million principal amount of its 4.25

percent Convertible Subordinated Notes due November 30, 2004, with interest payable semi-

annually on November 30 and May 30 of each year, commencing on May 30, 2000. The Notes

are convertible into 13,959,660 ordinary shares at USD 37.25 (EUR 42.27) per share at any time

prior to maturity. At any time on or after December 5, 2002, the notes are redeemable at the

option of ASML, in whole or in part, at the prices specified below, together with accrued interest.

During the year 2001, none of the notes were converted into ordinary shares. The redemption

prices, expressed as a percentage of the outstanding principal amount of the Notes being

redeemed are:
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Lines of credit

Deferred

compensation plan

Redemption

Price

December 5, 2002, through December 4, 2003 101.70%

December 5, 2003, through November 29, 2004 100.85%

November 30, 2004, and thereafter 100.00%

In October 2001, ASML completed an offering of USD 575 million principal amount of its 5.75

percent Convertible Subordinated Notes due October 15, 2006, with interest payable

semi-annually April 15 and October 16 of each year, commencing on April 15, 2002. The Notes

are convertible into 30,814,576 ordinary shares at USD 18.65 (EUR 21.17) per share at any time

prior to maturity. At any time on or after October 22, 2004 the Notes are redeemable at the

option of ASML, in whole or in part at the redemption price of 100 percent of their principal

amount together with accrued interest.

Other long term debt

In February 1997, the Company received a EUR 7 million loan from the Connecticut

Development Authority. The loan has a ten year term, bears interest at 8.25 percent, and is

secured by the Company's Wilton, Connecticut facility. 

In 1999, the Company assumed three Yen-denominated loans in connection with the acquisition

of SEG. Approximately EUR 8 million (JPY 734 million), which is secured by land and buildings

in Japan, is payable in monthly installments through the year 2011, bearing interest at 2.5 per-

cent. Approximately EUR 14 million (JPY 1,350 million) and EUR 2 million (JPY 200 million) are

unsecured and are repayable in 2006 and 2007, respectively, bearing interest at 3.1 percent and

2.2 percent, respectively, payable semiannually. 

At December 31, 2001, the Company had available credit facilities for a total of EUR 288 million

(2000, EUR 227 million), all of which expire in 2005. These credit lines bear interest at the

European Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR) plus a margin. No amounts were outstanding under

these credit facilities at the end of the year.

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

In February 1997, SVG adopted a non-qualified deferred compensation plan that allowed a

select group of management or highly compensated employees and directors to defer a portion

of their salary, bonus and other benefits. The plans allowed SVG to credit additional amounts to 

participants' account balances, depending on the amount of the employee's contribution, up to

a maximum of 5 percent of an employee's annual salary and bonus. In addition, interest is 

credited to the participants' account balances at 120 percent of the average Moody's corporate

bond rate. For calendar years 2000 and 2001, participants' accounts are credited at 9.52 percent

and 9.54 percent respectively. SVG’s contributions and related interest became 100 percent

vested five years after the year in which the contribution was made or in the event of a change

in control of SVG or retirement, death or disability of the participant. The plan became fully 

vested in May 2001 with the merger of SVG and ASML. During fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2001,

46

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001



Pension plans

Profit-sharing plan

the expense incurred under this plan was EUR 1 million, EUR 2 million and EUR 2 million,

respectively, and at December 31, 2001, the Company's liability under the deferred 

compensation plan was EUR 17 million.

In connection with the merger with SVG, ASML assumed unfunded salary continuation 

agreements with certain key executives and employees of ASML Optics LLC, formerly Tinsley

Laboratories Inc. Under the terms of the agreements, the Company has agreed to pay certain

fixed amounts over a ten year period after the employees reach the age of 65. Payments began

vesting December 1990 and become fully vested only if the participants remain employed by the

Company through the age of 65. The present value of these payments, calculated using a

discount rate of 6 percent is being charged ratably to expense over the vesting period. During

1999, 2000 and 2001, the Company had minor related expenses. At December 31, 2001, the

Company’s liability under these agreements was EUR 1 million.

ASML and its consolidated subsidiaries maintain various retirement plans covering substantially

all of its employees. Employees in the Netherlands are participating in a multi-employer union

plan, that consists of defined benefits determined in accordance with the respective collective

bargaining agreements. This plan is subject to a salary cap. Employees with a salary exceeding

the aforementioned salary cap are also participating in the ASML defined contribution based

pension plan. The employer pension costs for the aforementioned pension plans were EUR 8

million, EUR 12 million and EUR 19 million during 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

For employees working outside the Netherlands, ASML maintains a defined contribution based

pension plan. The employer contribution is based on a percentage of the salaries. For

employees participating in the United States pension plan, the Company may make, at its sole

discretion, an additional contribution to this U.S. plan if the Company meets certain financial

performance criteria. No such contributions were made in 1999, 2000 and 2001. The employer

pension costs for the aforementioned pension plans amounted to EUR 1 million, EUR 4 million,

and EUR 10 million during 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively and are accounted for under cost

of sales and selling, general and administrative expense.

In connection with the merger with SVG, ASML has assumed the defined benefit pension plan

for ASML Optics LLC, formerly Tinsley Laboratories Inc. As previously mentioned, Tinsley has

been divested. The company no longer has a commitment under this plan for these employees.

As of December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001, the Company had recorded minor pension liabilities,

within stockholders’ equity. These liabilities are based upon the excess of the estimated 

accumulated benefit obligation of EUR 2 million each for the three years ended December 31,

2001, over the fair market value of plan assets (primarily corporate bond mutual funds). 

During 1995, heritage ASML established a profit-sharing plan (the “Plan”) covering all 

employees. Under the Plan, which was revised in 1999 and is effective as of January 1999,

employees who are eligible will receive an annual profit-sharing bonus, based on a percentage

of net income to sales ranging from 0 to 20 percent of annual salary.

Heritage SVG provided a profit-sharing plan with quarterly distributions to eligible employees as

determined by the Board of Directors. Profit-sharing expense was EUR 8 million in 2000, and

47

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001



Stock option plans

EUR 3 million in the quarter ended December 31, 2000. No profit-sharing distributions were

made in fiscal years 1999 and 2001. Under the Company's Cash or Deferred Profit Sharing Plan

(401k Plan), the Company may make contributions, depending on the amount of the employee's

contribution, up to a maximum of 3 percent of compensation. The Company's contributions

were EUR 4 million in 1999, and EUR 5 million in 2000 and 2001.

In 1997, the Company issued stock option plans, in which 2,590,722 stock options were

authorized to purchase 2,590,722 ordinary shares. The stock option plans provide for the

issuance of up to 2,137,722 options to purchase ordinary shares for eligible employees of ASML

and up to 453,000 options to purchase ordinary shares for certain key personnel and 

management. In 1998, the company issued stock option plans, in which 3,348,576 options were

authorized to purchase ordinary shares. The stock option plans provide for the issuance of up

to 2,097,831 options to purchase ordinary shares for eligible employees of ASML and up to

1,250,745 options to purchase ordinary shares for key personnel and management. These plans,

set up for eligible employees, include a feature whereby eligible employees will have the right to

elect to receive options to purchase ordinary shares in lieu of distribution under the profit 

sharing plan. Options granted under these plans have fixed exercise prices equal to the closing

price of the Company’s ordinary shares on Euronext Amsterdam N.V. on the applicable grant

dates. Stock options granted to eligible employees in 1997 vest over a period of two years, and

any unexercised options outstanding expire five years after the grant date. In 1998, stock

options granted vest over a three year period with any unexercised stock options expiring six

years after the grant date. Stock options granted to key personnel in 1998 vest over a three and

four year period with any unexercised stock options expiring six years after the grant date. For

the year 1999, a number of 3,000,000 stock options was authorized to purchase ordinary shares.

In 1999, a stock option plan was issued by the Board of Management, with the approval of the

Supervisory Board and the holders of priority shares. The plan is effective as of the year 2000

and will remain in place until revoked by the Board of Management. The Board of Management

determined, by category of ASML personnel, the total available number of options that can be

granted in a certain year on an annual basis. The determination is subject to approval of the

Supervisory Board and the holders of priority shares of the Company. 

For the year 2000, a total number of 4,500,000 stock options was authorized to purchase 

ordinary shares, and for the year 2001 and 2002, a total number of 6,000,000 has been authorized.

The vesting and exercise periods for the plans of 1999, 2000 and 2001 are similar to the plan of

1998, with the exception of a designated part of grants performed in July 2001 which have a

graded vest of 1/3 (one third) after the first year, 1/3 (one third) after the second year and 1/3

(one third) in the third year.

During 2001, 232,520 options to purchase ordinary shares were granted to the Board of

Management. No options were exercised during 2001 by Members of the Board of Management.
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For the 2002 plan, the employees will have the right to receive options to purchase ordinary

shares in lieu of a percentage of their salary. For the stock options granted in 2000, the exercise

period was extended from 2006 to 2012.

Stock option transactions are summarized as follows:

Number of shares Weighted average

exercise price per share (EUR)

Outstanding December 31, 1998 10,411,972 10.46

Granted 5,280,148 12.61

Exercised (2,229,430) 3.84

Cancelled (295,666) 13.70

Outstanding, December 31, 1999 13,167,024 12.68

Granted 6,959,868 37.43

Exercised (2,630,710) 12.82

Cancelled (427,143) 18.90

Outstanding, December 31, 2000 17,069,039 28.84

Granted 5,883,550 32.78

Exercised (1,488,107) 9.75

Cancelled (265,212) 23.22

Outstanding, December 31, 2001 21,199,270 26.01

Exercisable, December 31, 2001 6,870,466 15.22

Exercisable, December 31, 2000 6,138,839 12.57

Exercisable, December 31, 1999 3,535,929 14.14

Information with respect to stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001 is as follows:

Number Weighted Weighted 

outstanding average average

December 31, remaining exercise

Options outstanding 2001 contractual price

Range of exercise prices (EUR) life (years) (EUR)

2.36–8.98 610,198 0.93 5.22

9.37–12.36 5,320,231 2.41 11.03

12.87–31.75 9,005,805 4.28 22.30

35.45–47.15 6,263,036 3.78 44.06

Total 21,199,270 3.57 25.41

Under the provisions of APB 25, no compensation expense was recorded for ASML’s 

stock-based compensation plans. Had compensation cost been determined based upon the fair

value at the grant date for awards under the plan consistent with the methodology prescribed
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under SFAS 123, ASML’s net income and calculation for net income per ordinary share would

have been as follows:

1999 2000 2001

Net income (loss)

As reported 57,188 378,047 (478,992)

Pro forma 38,122 345,835 (508,534)

Basic Net Income (loss) 

per Ordinary Share

As reported 0.12 0.82 (1.03)

Pro forma 0.08 0.75 (1.09)

Diluted Net Income (loss)

per Ordinary Share

As reported 0.12 0.78 (1.03)

Pro forma 0.08 0.74 (1.09)

The estimated weighted average fair value of options granted during 1999, 2000 and 2001 was

EUR 6.86, EUR 20.91 and EUR 20.68 respectively, on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model with the following assumptions in 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively: no

dividend yield, volatility of 50.0, 73.0 and 74.0 percent, risk-free interest rate of 5.75, 7.2 and 7.0

percent, no assumed forfeiture rate and an expected life of 2 years after the vesting period.

14. RELATED PARTIES (SEE ALSO NOTES 2 AND 20)

Transactions between ASML and Philips are effected at market value prices.

ASML has several agreements with Philips that set forth the parties’ respective responsibility for

certain matters arising out of the historical operations of ASML and the formation of the

Company as a holding company for ASML’s operations: establish certain rights and obligations

of the Company, Philips and their respective subsidiaries on a prospective basis; afford the

Company continued access to Philips’ research and development resources in return for fees

and provide for the parties’ respective rights to certain items of intellectual property.

In its ordinary course of business, ASML engages in sales and purchase transactions with

various companies within Philips.

As mentioned in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the ownership of the

company’s shares owned by Philips decreased to less than 10 percent in 2000. Therefore,

Philips is no longer regarded as a related party for 2000 and 2001, and no additional disclosures

for the year 2000 and 2001 have been presented.
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The following table summarizes transactions between ASML and Philips:

Year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

Activities

Purchases of goods and services 75,213 NA* NA

Research and development expenses 38,163 NA NA

Total purchases from Philips 113,376 NA NA

Sales to Philips 57,065 NA NA

* NA = Not applicable

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments recorded on the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents,

accounts receivable, accounts payable and convertible subordinated loans. The carrying

amounts of all financial instruments approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of

these instruments. The fair value of ASML’s long-term debt, based on current rates for similar

instruments with the same maturities, approximates the carrying amount. As of December 31,

2001 ASML was a party in open forward contracts to hedge sales transactions in U.S. dollars up

to an amount of USD 37.0 million. Furthermore, ASML was a party in an open forward contract

to hedge purchase transactions up to an amount of USD 15.0 million and in option contracts to

hedge purchase transactions up to an amount of USD 35.5 million. Also, ASML was a party in

open forward contracts to hedge the loan to Micronic up to an amount of SEK 320 million.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

ASML leases facilities and certain equipment under operational leases. As of December 31,

2001, the minimum annual rental commitments are as follows:

2002 37,010

2003 34,650

2004 39,949

2005 23,413

2006 18,020

Thereafter 135,140

Total 288,182

Rental expense was EUR 53 million, EUR 59 million and EUR 80 million for the years ended

December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively. 

ASML terminated sale and leaseback transactions to lease, for testing and training purposes,

systems manufactured by ASML. 
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The Company is party to various legal proceedings generally incidental to its business. As is the

case with other companies in similar industries, ASML faces exposure from actual or potential

claims and legal proceedings. Although the ultimate disposition of legal proceedings cannot be

predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of the Company’s management that the outcome of any

claim which is pending or threatened, either individually or on a combined basis, will not have a

materially adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition but could materially affect

consolidated results of operations in a given year.

On occasion, certain of ASML’s customers have received notices of infringement from third

parties, alleging the ASML equipment used by such customers in the manufacture of 

semiconductor products and/or the methods relating to use of the ASML equipment infringes

one or more patents issued to such parties. ASML has been advised that, if claims were 

successful, ASML could be required to indemnify such customers for some or all of any losses

incurred or damages assessed against them as a result of that infringement.

In 1998, Fullman International Inc., and Fullman Company LLC (“Fullman”) initiated a lawsuit in

the United States District Court for the District of Oregon alleging claims for fraudulent 

conveyance, constructive trust and declaratory relief in connection with a settlement the

Company had previously entered into resolving our claims against a Thailand purchaser of the

Company's equipment. In its complaint against the Company, Fullman, allegedly another 

creditor of the Thailand purchaser, alleges damages of approximately EUR 13 million plus 

interest. The Company has successfully moved to transfer the case to the United States District

Court for the Northern District of California. The district court has dismissed the case. However,

subsequently Fullman appealed the judgement to the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals in San

Francisco. The appeal is still pending. While the outcome of such litigation is uncertain, the

Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the claims and intends to conduct a vigorous

defense. 

On May 23, 2000, Ultratech Stepper, Inc. (“Ultratech”), filed a lawsuit in the United States District

Court for the Eastern District of Virginia (which has subsequently been transferred to the United

States District Court for the Northern District of California) against ASML. Ultratech alleges in

the complaint of the lawsuit that the defendants are infringing Ultratech’s rights under a United

States patent, through the manufacture and commercialization in the United States of advanced

photolithography equipment embodying technology that, in particular, is used in Step & Scan

equipment. Ultratech’s complaint seeks injunctive relief and damages. Management believes,

based on current information and, in particular, recent favorable interpretation by the Court as

to the scope and meaning of the asserted patent, that meritorious defenses are available, which

ASML intends to vigorously assert. On October 12, 2001, ASML filed a lawsuit in the United

States District Court for the District of Massachusetts against Ultratech. ASML’s complaint

alleges that Ultratech’s manufacture, use, offer for sale and sale of certain of its photolithogra-

phy stepper devices in the United States infringe six United States patents held by ASML.

ASML’s complaint seeks injunctive relief and damages. ASML intends to vigorously pursue these

claims.

On December 21, 2001, Nikon and two of its United States subsidiaries filed a complaint with

the United States International Trade Commission (“ITC”) under Section 337 of the United States
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trade laws against ASML. On the same day, Nikon also filed a separate patent infringement

action in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California. On January 23,

2002, the ITC instituted an investigation under Section 337 based on Nikon's 

complaint. The complaint in the ITC investigation alleges that ASML’s photolithography

machines imported into the United States infringe seven United States patents held by Nikon.

The complaint in the California action alleges infringement of four other Nikon patents. Nikon's

patents relate to several different aspects of photolithography equipment. In the ITC proceed-

ing, Nikon seeks to exclude the importation of infringing products. The California complaint

seeks injunctive relief and damages. ASML is reviewing these cases. It is very early in the

process and therefore the outcome cannot be estimated at this stage.

17. COST OF SALES

ASML has research and development agreements with the Government of the Netherlands,

Ministry of Economic Affairs. In 1999, 2000 and 2001, credits were received for research and

development projects relating to a new generation of semiconductor lithography systems. The

agreements require that the majority of the amounts received are to be repaid, with interest, to

the extent product sales occur which relate to the research. The amount of the repayment due

is based on a percentage of the selling price of the product and is charged to cost of sales when

such a sale is recorded. In 1999, 2000 and 2001, no repayment obligations were outstanding. In

2001, the first repayment of these credits was recorded.

As of December 31, 2000 and 2001, ASML has contingent obligations totaling EUR 46 million and

EUR 49 million to repay TOK credits received in 2000. The increase in this liability was caused by

added interest. Restructuring costs included in cost of sales are disclosed in footnote 2.

18. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CREDITS

ASML receives subsidies and credits for research and development from various sources as

follows:

Year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

European Community/Dutch technology 

(EUREKA) subsidy 9,688 5,941 9,872

Netherlands Ministry of 

Economic Affairs (TOKs) credits* 17,073 8,176 0

Netherlands Ministry of 

Economic Affairs subsidy 

(WBSO / BTS / Stimulus) 5,066 4,101 6,009

European Community technology 

(ESPRIT-EUCLIDES / ELLIPSE) subsidy

& other subsidies 6,988 6,765 342

Total subsidies and credits received 38,815 24,983 16,223

* See Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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19. INCOME TAXES

The components of income before income taxes are as follows:

Year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

Domestic 92,796 406,559 (36,486)

Foreign (9,169) 143,228 (660,734)

Total 83,627 549,787 (697,220)

The foreign component relates almost entirely to the U.S.A.

The Dutch domestic statutory tax rate is 35 percent. The reconciliation between the provision for

income taxes shown in the consolidated statement of operations, based on the effective tax

rate, and expense based on the domestic tax rate, is as follows:

Year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

Income tax expense based on 

domestic rate 29,269 192,425 (244,027)

Different foreign tax rates (2,506) (19,936) 25,974

Other credits and non-taxable items (324) (5,240) (175)

Provision for income taxes shown in 

the income statement 26,439 167,249 218,228

ASML’s provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

Current

Domestic 41,207 136,881 (28,343)

Foreign 310 40,015 6,002

Deferred

Domestic (9,052) (9,061) 0

Foreign (6,026) (586) (195,887)

Total 26,439 167,249 218,228
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following:

December 31 2000 2001

Tax effect carry forward losses 8,420 176,959

Inventories (9,582) (22,692)

Other 32,761 73,219

Total 31,599 227,486

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are classified in the Consolidated Financial Statements as follows: 

December 31 2000 2001

Deferred tax assets – current 41,210 362

Deferred tax assets – non-current 3,173 262,091

Deferred tax liabilities – current (9,582) (665)

Deferred tax liabilities – non-current (3,202) (34,302)

Total 31,599 227,486

As it is more likely than not that the defined tax asset will be realized, a valuation allowance is

not recorded. The net operating losses carry forwards have an expiration date between 5-20

years.

20. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

Segment information has been prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards

Board, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of

an Enterprise and Related Information.” Management has identified two business segments

based on products and services provided by each segment which are Lithography and Track

and Thermal. Track and Thermal are aggregated when evaluated by management, as the seg-

ments have similar economic characteristics, the nature of products are similar and the cus-

tomers serviced are similar. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those

described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Performance of the segments is

evaluated on operating income (loss). All interest income (expense) and minority interest in net

income (loss) from subsidiaries are evaluated on a consolidated basis. The Company does not

have sales between segments, and transactions between segments have been eliminated.

55

ASML FINANCIAL REPORT 2001



For the year ended December 31, Lithography Track and Thermal Total

2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001

Net product sales 2,462,538 1,335,480 312,487 203,278 2,775,025 1,538,758

Net service sales 169,995 218,825 117,624 86,778 287,619 305,603

Total net sales 2,632,533 1,554,305 430,111 290,056 3,062,644 1,844,361

Cost of product sales 1,405,471 1,348,837 237,648 217,604 1,643,119 1,566,441

Cost of service sales 145,576 190,331 53,539 35,732 199,115 226,063

Total costs of sales 1,551,047 1,539,168 291,187 253,336 1,842,234 1,792,504

Gross profit on sales 1,081,486 15,137 138,924 36,720 1,220,410 51,857

Research and development costs 327,015 347,333 64,988 77,114 392,003 424,447

Research and development credits (24,983) (16,223) – – (24,983) (16,223)

Selling, general and 

administrative expenses 247,221 237,549 65,770 42,444 312,991 279,993

Merger and acquisition costs – 44,559 – 12,700 – 57,259

Operating income (loss) 532,233 (598,081) 8,166 (95,538) 540,399 (693,619)
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ASML markets and sells its products in the United States and Europe principally through its

direct sales organization and in Asia by means of independent sales agents. ASML makes all its

sales into the United States through its U.S. operation and as from January 1st, 1999, its sales

into Asia through its Hong Kong operation. Intra-area sales are accounted for at prices that

provide a profit and take into consideration the rules and regulations of the respective govern-

ing authorities.

The following table summarizes net sales, operating income and identifiable assets of ASML’s

operations in the Netherlands, the United States and Asia, the significant geographic areas in

which ASML operates. 

Asia Netherlands United States Eliminations Consolidated

1999

Net sales to 

unaffiliated customers 623,749 125,725 829,447 0 1,578,921

Net sales to Philips 0 35,688 21,377 0 57,065

Intra-area sales 0 899,097 0 (899,097) 0

Total net sales 623,749 1,060,510 850,824 (899,097) 1,635,986

Operating income 34,113 80,986 (32,710) 229 82,618

Identifiable assets 248,450 1,389,361 896,555 (177,359) 2,357,007

2000

Net sales to 

unaffiliated customers 1,237,170 339,795 1,485,679 0 3,062,644

Intra-area sales 0 1,688,960 0 (1,688,960) 0

Total net sales 1,237,170 2,028,755 1,485,679 (1,688,960) 3,062,644

Operating income 122,830 357,605 60,252 (288) 540,399

Identifiable assets 414,570 2,043,212 1,230,166 (289,250) 3,398,698

2001

Net sales to 

unaffiliated customers 742,697 150,127 951,537 0 1,844,361

Intra-area sales 0 1,106,485 0 (1,106,485) 0

Total net sales 742,697 1,256,612 951,537 (1,106,485) 1,844,361

Operating income (48,024) 39,634 (647,812) (37,417) (693,619)

Identifiable assets 382,907 3,149,982 1,013,696 (945,945) 3,600,640

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures by segment are not evaluated by the chief operating

decision maker and are not used for the purpose of making decisions about allocating

resources to the segment or assessing its performance.
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21. SELECTED OPERATING EXPENSES AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Aggregate cash compensation paid or accrued, including amounts accrued to provide pension,

retirement or similar benefits by ASML for its management including members of the Board of

Management of the Company, was EUR 2 million in 1999, EUR 3 million in 2000 and EUR 3 mil-

lion in 2001. Aggregate compensation for the members of the Supervisory Board amounted to

EUR 0.1 million in 1999, 2000 and 2001. Personnel expenses for all employees were:

For year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

Wages and salaries 259,409 387,287 483,522

Social security expenses 22,472 34,077 39,116

Pension and retirement expenses 13,391 22,111 28,258

Total 295,272 443,475 550,896

The average number of employees during 1999, 2000 and 2001 was 5,736, 7,513 and 7,673

respectively.

The total number of personnel employed per sector was:

For year ended December 31 1999 2000 2001

Marketing & Technology 1,714 2,214 2,028

Goodsflow 2,033 2,663 1,872

Customer Support 1,583 2,296 2,228

General 554 743 794

Sales 177 207 148

Total 6,061 8,123 7,070

In 1999, 2000 and 2001, a total of 2,393, 3,329 and 2,972 personnel, respectively, were

employed in the Netherlands.

22. VULNERABILITY DUE TO CERTAIN CONCENTRATIONS

ASML relies on outside vendors to manufacture the components and subassemblies used in its

systems, each of which is obtained from a sole supplier or a limited number of suppliers. ASML’s

reliance on a limited group of suppliers involves several risks, including a potential inability to

obtain an adequate supply of required components and reduced control over pricing and timely

delivery of these subassemblies and components. In particular, the number of systems ASML

has been able to produce has occasionally been limited by the production capacity of Zeiss.

Zeiss currently is ASML’s sole supplier of lenses and other critical optical components and is

capable of producing these lenses only in limited numbers and only through the use of its

manufacturing and testing facility in Oberkochen, Germany. In addition to Zeiss’ position as

ASML’s sole supplier of lenses, the Excimer laser illumination systems for Deep UV systems are

available from a very limited number of suppliers. Additionally, certain raw materials and
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Cumulative

Preference Shares

Priority Shares

minerals necessary for the manufacture of certain components supplied by outside vendors may

occasionally be limited. Any prolonged inability to obtain adequate deliveries from its suppliers,

or any other circumstance that would require ASML to seek alternative sources of supply, could

adversely impact ASML’s future operating results.

23. CAPITAL STOCK

In April 1998, the Company has granted to the preference share foundation Stichting Preferente

Aandelen ASML (“the Foundation”) an option to acquire cumulative preference shares in the

capital of the Company (the “Preference Share Option”). The object of the Foundation is to

protect the interests of the Company and the enterprises maintained by it. The cumulative 

preference shares have a higher liquidity preference for dividends payable and the same voting

rights as ordinary shares. Additionally, cumulative preference shares are entitled to dividends at

a percentage based on the average official interest rate determined by Euribor plus 2 percent. 

The Preference Share Option gives the Foundation the right to acquire a number of Cumulative

Preference Shares equal to the number of ordinary shares outstanding held by the Foundation

at the time of exercise of the Cumulative Preference Share Option for a subscription price equal

to their EUR 0.02 nominal value. Only one-fourth of this subscription price is payable at the time

of initial issuance of the cumulative preference shares. The cumulative preference shares may

be cancelled and repaid by the Company upon the authorization by the General Meeting of the

Shareholders of a proposal to do so by the Board of Management that receives the prior

approval of the Supervisory Board and of the Meeting of Priority Shareholders.

Exercise of the Preference Share Option would effectively dilute the voting power of the ordinary

shares then outstanding by one-half. The practical effect of any such exercise could be to

prevent attempts by third parties to acquire control of the Company.

Declaration of Independence as defined in “Bijlage X van het Fondsenreglement”

The Board of Directors of the Foundation and the Board of Management of the Company

together declare that the Foundation is not a “committed person” with the Company as defined

in article A 2 B II of “Bijlage X van het Fondsenreglement van Euronext Amsterdam N.V.”. The

Board of the Foundation comprises three voting members from the Dutch business and

academic communities, Mr. R. Selman, Mr. F. Grapperhaus and Mr. M den Boogert, and two

non-voting members the Chairman of the Company’s Supervisory Board and the Chairman of

the Company’s Board of Management, Mr. H. Bodt and Mr. D. Dunn respectively.

The priority shares are held by a foundation, having an elected board that consists solely of

members of the Company’s Supervisory Board and Board of Management. 

As of December 31, 2001, the board members were:

– Doug J. Dunn

– Henk Bodt

– Arie Westerlaken

– Syb Bergsma

– Jan A. Dekker

– Peter T.F.M. Wennink
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An overview of the other functions held by above persons can be obtained at the Company’s

office.

Furthermore, the Company, as well as the members of the board, declare in accordance with

Article 11 under C of the “Bijlage X van het Fondsenreglement van Euronext Amsterdam N.V.”

that in their opinion the composition of the board conforms with Article 10 under C of the above

mentioned “Bijlage.”1

With respect to the priority shares, they are not entitled to dividends but have a preferred right

over all other outstanding preferred and ordinary shares on the return of their nominal value in

the case of winding up the Company. Holders of the priority shares of the Company have the

effective power to control significant corporate decisions and transactions of the Company.

These decisions and transactions encompass, but are not limited to, amendment of the Articles

of Association, winding up of the Company, issuance of shares, limitation of pre-emptive rights

and repurchase and cancellation of shares.

1 Article 10 states that the issuing entity takes care that not more than half of the priority shares are being held by
Board members of the issuing entity or, in case the priority shares are being held by a legal entity, that not more
than half of the amount of votes to be exercised in meetings of the foundation in which decisions are made about
the exercise of the voting rights of the priority shares, can be exercised, directly or indirectly, by persons who are
also Board members of the issuing entity.
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Independent Auditors’ 
Report

To the Supervisory Board, Board of Management and Shareholders of ASML Holding N.V.

Veldhoven, the Netherlands

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ASML Holding N.V. and its

subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the related

consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These Financial

Statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the Financial Statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall Financial

Statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the results of its

operations, comprehensive income and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of euro amounts into U.S. dollar amounts, and, in

our opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1 of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented mainly

for the convenience of readers outside the Economic and Monetary Union (EMU).

Eindhoven, the Netherlands

January 17, 2002
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Information and Investor Relations

Financial Calendar

March 21, 2002

General Meeting of Shareholders 

at the Evoluon, 

Noord Brabantlaan 1a in Eindhoven, 

The Netherlands

July 17, 2002

Announcement of semi-annual results for 2002

January 16, 2003

Announcement of annual results for 2002

Fiscal Year

ASML’s fiscal year ends as of December 31.

Listing

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Official market of the Euronext

Amsterdam N.V. and on the Nasdaq Stock Market® (NASDAQ) in the United States, both

under the symbol “ASML.”

Investor Relations

ASML Investor Relations will supply information or further copies of the original English Annual

Report as well as copies of the Dutch translation. In case of different interpretation between

these versions, the English version prevails. Copies of other publications (i.e., Semi-Annual

Reports or the Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange

Commission and the Amsterdam Exchanges) can also be obtained free of charge at the offices

of ASML. The English version of the Annual Report and the Semi-Annual report are also available

on the ASML website (www.asml.com).
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Contact Information

ASML Holding N.V.

Investor Relations

phone: +31 40 268 4941 / 3938

fax: +31 40 268 3655

e-mail: investor.relations@asml.com

Corporate Communications

phone: +31 40 268 3687

fax: +31 40 268 3655

e-mail: corpcom@asml.com

Office Address

De Run 1110

5503 LA Veldhoven

The Netherlands

Mailing Address

P.O. Box 324

5500 AH Veldhoven

The Netherlands
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